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ive Years Financial Summary
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Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-HL%E

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Results Ey —E—t& “E-RE —“E-hEF —E-NE —E-=F
Turnover L]
(RMB'000) (AREFTT) 615,899 479,111 7,801 11,108 575,871
Profit (loss) attributable KRR ZHERAN
to owners of the EiEaF (EE)
Company (RMB'000) (AREFT) 44,702 4,612 (33,783) 50,192 157,448
Earnings (loss) per share BREMN (FB)
(RMB cents) (ARES)
From continuing and RERFELEEBR
discontinued operations ERIEEEER
- Basic —-HR 2.93 0.30 (3.02) 533 16.72
- Diluted -3 2.93 NATE R N/AT 376 11.78
At 31 December
R+=-A=+-8
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Assets and liabilities BERERE —E—t& “E-RE “E-RE —E-NE —E-=F
Total assets BEEE
(RMB'000) (AR®EFT) 1,382,377 1,508,282 1,656,810 1,348,211 531,921
Total liabilities BERE
(RMB'000) (ARETT) (787,982) (974,254) (1,134,447 (838,331) (35,110)
Net asset value BESE
(RMB'000) (AREFT) 594,395 534,028 522,363 509,880 496,811
Equity attributable to owners &R E Z#H A
of the parent (RMB'000) FEfh R
(AR®EF L) 556,359 503,906 500,187 485,386 501,139
Non-controlling interests IR
(RMB'000) (AREFTT) 38,036 30,122 22,176 24,494 (4,328)
Total equity BERBE 594,395 534,028 522,363 509,880 496,811
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the major business segments of the China
Uptown Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) during the year ended 31
December 2017 (the “Year") is as follows:

Property Development and Investment

The revenue attributed to the property development
and investment business amounted to approximately
RMB547,341,000 (2016: approximately RMB479,111,000)
representing sales of properties of approximately
RMB546,659,000 (2016: approximately RMB479,111,000)
and rental income of approximately RMB682,000 (2016:
Nil).

The Group owns a property development project located
in Maoming City (the “Project”), Guangdong Province,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). The Project
would be developed into a composite of residential and
commercial properties in three phases.

As disclosed in the Company’s 2016 annual report, the
construction of properties of phase 1 and 2 was completed
in second half of year 2016, and the properties were
delivered to the customers according to the delivery
schedule of sales agreements in second half of year 2016
and in 2017. As a result, the financial performance of the
property development business has significantly improved
since second half of year 2016. Moreover, as majority of
the properties were contracted for pre-sale in previous
years and recognised as sales in accordance with scheduled
delivery during the Year, the property development business
remains stable as compared to second half of year 2016.

During the Year, a portion of the commercial properties of
phase 1 and 2 of the Project of approximately 4,000 square
metres was leased and reclassified as investment properties
of the Group. Fair value change on investment properties
of approximately RMB43,644,000 (2016: Nil) was recorded
during the Year which contributed significantly to the
improved result.

BEEER W RO

XD

TEEWNEBAERAR (IARAE]) REKBARF
(IREE ) RBE-ZT—+F+-_A=+—8H1It
FE(AFED)ZEEXB DA RIBEWT

MEBRRRE

MEBERBAMEREEBELEZEUEHOAR
547,341,000 (ZE—XRFHAR
a479,111,000m) 'BEIMEHENAR
546,659,000 (ZE—RNF:HAR
¥479,111,000) RS HRADHARK
682,000 (ZZ —/RF #|) o

AEERTEARKME ([FE])EREX
AmEA—EWEHEERARB ([ZBEB]) %A
B S —HERAETEBEAYER BN
BERERB -

BUARR - RNEFHAPE £ —H 8
BE_HIYMERBRR _ZE-RFTHFRIT
AMER-_Z-AREFETH+FR_FT—LtFER
HEBAIMNBRARZIMNTES - Bt - WEH
REBZVBRRA T -ARNFTFFUERKR
IEERE o bb s REB D WX LART F E B EFT
WIAEINAFERBRAEINERR/EES
ME—ZZ-R"FT+F NEEREBERER

}'\io

RAFE ZEBF—HERFEF_HHRAUER
BHA4,000E K HEHE FTHEYEF D
BAEBCIREME - AFEEHREBEREME
ZANBEEHHAREALS 644,000 (= F
—NFE) RNBREEEHE -

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED E-#&E&ERA
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 =2—tHF®8

5



6

The construction of phase 3 of the Project has commenced
in 2016 and will be completed in late 2018 and 2019.
The total gross floor area of phase 3 of the Project is
approximately 188,000 square metres with residential
and commercial properties of saleable floor area of
approximately 128,000 square metres, which mainly
consists of nine buildings of 32 floors each.

Trading of raw sugar

The Group has started its business in trading of raw sugar
since late 2014. During the Year, turnover attributable
to the trading of raw sugar business amounted to
approximately RMB68,558,000 (2016: Nil). The sales
represented the raw sugar acquired from the supplier
in Association of South East Asian Nations (“ASEAN")
countries and sold to the customer in Europe. Reference
is made to the announcements of the Company dated
22 January 2018 and 14 February 2018 and circular of
the Company dated 6 March 2018, Techwayson Trading
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
has entered into a master agreement and a supplement
agreement with China Sugar Holdings Limited (“China
Sugar”) to purchase raw cane sugar from China Sugar
for a period of 34 months ended 31 December 2020.
The management of the Company is of the view that
such arrangement could enhance the sugar procurement
network of the Group for a more rapid expansion of its
trading of raw sugar business.

MARKET OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

In 2017, the PRC economy remained complicated.
Tightening policies and measures of the real estate market
remained. In order to regulate the development of real
estate industry in the PRC continuously, the government
has announced a series of regulatory policies focusing on a
long-term and effective mechanism to regulate the industry
and, at the same time, develop a sustainable and healthy
growth of the real estate market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Government policies and financial policies were tightened,
particularly in the first and second tier cities. However,
driven by urbanization of third tier and satellite cities,
the management of the Company is confident that our
real estate project in Maoming City will not be materially
affected. In particular (1) good reputation of the Project
since the delivery of phase 1 & 2 of the Project; (2)
approximately 50% (based on planned gross floor area)
of residential properties of phase 3 of the Project were
contracted for sales during the Year; (3) average selling
price of phase 3 of the Project gradually increased and
the property market in Maoming was rather stable during
the Year and will be similar in the foreseeable future; and
(4) the local city transformation created a strong end-user
housing demands in the district of the Project.

While the Company is cautious in its investment policies,
the continuous urbanisation in the PRC and infrastructure
development in western Guangdong province, including
completion of the new regional airport and the China
high-speed railway, the management of the Company is
optimistic on the pre-sale of the remaining properties of
phase 3 of the Project which will be launched in 2018.

Regarding the trading of raw sugar business, it is the
goal of the Group to expand its supply chain worldwide
and to diversify its customer base in the coming years.
As described above, securing a steady supply source
will significantly improve the overall business flow and
enhance the ability of the Group in exploring new
customers. The raw cane sugar price is at a relatively low
range (with reference to Sugar no.11 contract of New
York Intercontinental Exchange) as compared to recent 2
years with a rather stable fluctuation in recent months. A
relatively stable price trend, however, in the view of the
management of the Company will lower the trading risk
and be beneficial in exploring new business opportunity.

BEEER W RO

BRBEREREBEREBEARE —GR &
WHALE - AWM E=ZGERFEEH TR T
EHT ARAEEEBREXETMEMEEHR
BrAeXBEAFE BBRAER()BZE
B —H0E _HINURZBEBEZORR
i (2Q)ZEBBEEZHL50% (RIBFEEZER
AEAE)ETEVEERAFETHEE  (3)
ZEBFEF-HrIHUEBER L EARKEZY
EMBRAFERERT LR AERRETE
Wit R (4)E o T 8 A B R AR i B P R% 8
BEAffEEER ZBE K-

HARNRAREBREERREBRR  BHREHML
ERFENEMMWEERER BREAGER
SRPBESEHNENR SARRAEEBENE
E-_Z-\FHENZBEBEF=-HNHRTYE
BEREBREER-

REESEBTEH ASEZBRSN KRR
FERHBEBERAABRELROMETPE
B o Xt - RS I8 E B KR K AR
RAEREGRAEAAEEBEH TS 268
7o BT M F AR L - R R (B A5 88 B AR B 8K
(BR2EZHONBEXSAEVIRERESL) -
MANKBHEERE - AM ARREEER
ROHERENERBESREEZRARLE
MRIRRFE -

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED E-#&E&ERA
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 =2—tHF®8

7



EEENRRDA

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the Year, the Group has achieved turnover of
approximately RMB615,899,000 (2016: approximately
RMB479,111,000). The profit attributable to owners of
the Company was approximately RMB44,702,000 (2016:
approximately RMB4,612,000). The upsurges in the
turnover and improvements of the results of the Group, as
disclosed in the Company's interim report 2017 and annual
report 2016, were mainly attributable to the recognition
of sales from phase 1 and 2 of the Project and fair value
change on certain investment properties. During the Year,
over 95% and 55% (based on the gross saleable area)
of the residential and commercial properties (including
office premises) of phase 1 and 2, which were classified as
properties held for sale of the Group, were delivered and
recognised as sales respectively.

During the Year, the Group's operating activities generated
a net cash outflow of approximately RMB10,333,000
(2016: inflow of approximately RMB245,367,000). As
at 31 December 2017, bank balances and cash was
approximately RMB26,322,000 (2016: approximately
RMB42,795,000), restricted bank deposit was
approximately RMB8,015,000 (2016: approximately
RMB7,888,000) and pledged bank deposit was
approximately RMB12,908,000 (2016: approximately
RMB34,044,000).

As at 31 December 2017, the total assets of the Group was
approximately RMB1,382,377,000 (2016: approximately
RMB1,508,282,000), representing a decrease of
approximately 8%. The decrease was mainly due to the
sales of properties of the phase 1 and 2 of the Project. As
at 31 December 2017, the Group's total borrowings and
loan payable increased to approximately RMB135,960,000
(2016: approximately RMB133,539,000).

As at 31 December 2017, the gearing ratio, expressed as
a percentage of total borrowings and loan payable over
net assets was approximately 23% (2016: approximately
25%) and the current ratio was approximately 1.8 (2016:
approximately 1.7).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCE COSTS

For the Year, the finance costs were approximately
RMB6,701,000 (2016: approximately RMB9,720,000). For
the Year, interest expenses of approximately RMB5,143,000
(2016: approximately RMB18,743,000) was capitalised
as properties under development. The charge mainly
comprised of bank borrowings wholly repayable within five
years and bank overdraft of approximately RMB4,963,000
(2016: approximately RMB9,362,000) and interest expenses
on receipt in advance of approximately RMB1,738,000
(2016: approximately RMB358,000).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at
31 December 2017 was approximately HK$152,448,000
divided into 1,524,478,520 shares of HK$0.10 each.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenues and incurs costs in
Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. The
Group's monetary assets and liabilities are denominated in
Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management will monitor foreign
exchange exposure closely and consider the use of hedging
instruments when the need arises.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s leasehold
land and buildings and properties under development
with an aggregate carrying values of approximately
RMB570,919,000 (2016: approximately RMB206,591,000)
were pledged to banks for securing general banking
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company. As
at 31 December 2017, banking facilities of approximately
RMB119,304,000 (2016: approximately RMB133,539,000)
were utilised and approximately RMB8,686,000 (2016:
approximately RMB9,851,000) were unutilised and
available for the Group's future financing.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The details of segment information are set out in note 6 to
the consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had commitments
for properties under development contracted for but
not provided in the consolidated financial statements of
approximately RMB249,161,000 (2016: approximately
RMB427,727,000).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed 71 (2016:
66) full time employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. Total
remuneration of the Group for the Year was approximately
RMB21,117,000 (2016: approximately RMB16,254,000).
The Group’'s emolument policies are formulated on the
basis of market trends, future plans and the performance of
individuals, which will be reviewed periodically. Apart from
provident fund scheme and state-managed social welfare
scheme, share options will also be awarded to employees
according to assessment of individuals" performance.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s maximum obligation
in respect of the mortgage facilities provided to certain
purchasers of the Group's properties amounted to
approximately RMB443,460,000 (2016: approximately
RMB535,979,000).

DIVIDEND

No dividend was declared or proposed during the Year. The
board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company’s corporate governance practices are
based on the principles and code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code"”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

Throughout the Year, the Company has complied with all
of the Code Provisions of the CG Code, except A.6.7.

Under the Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code,
independent non-executive directors and other non-
executive directors should attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. The whole Board and the auditor of the
Company had attended the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 23 June 2017 (the “2017 AGM")
to answer questions of the shareholders of the Company
except that Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael (the chairman of
audit committee of the Company) could not attend
the 2017 AGM due to other business engagement but
he had appointed the other attended Directors as his
representatives to answer questions of the shareholders of
the Company. In the future, the Company will endeavour
to encourage all the Directors to attend general meetings
of the Company.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed lIssuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions during the Year. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, the Company confirms that all Directors
have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the Year.

PURCHASES, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed
securities during the Year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD,
MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, AND FUTURE PLANS
FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

Save as otherwise disclosed, there were neither significant
investments held as at 31 December 2017 nor material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries during the Year.
There is no plan for material investments or capital assets as
at the date of this annual report.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Feng, aged 48, was appointed as an executive
Director and chairman of the Company on 17 August
2012. Mr. Liu Feng has over twenty years' experience
in the general management and sugars markets in the
PRC. Mr. Liu Feng is Vice Director of Sugar Association of
China* (FEEZEWE) . Mr. Liu Feng is a founder of
an enterprise engaged in the sugar and starch production
business in the PRC. Mr. Liu Feng was awarded as a
“Distinct Entrepreneur” by China Economic Trading
Promotion Agency* (Bl EE Z{E#E ) in 2011 and
as a "Distinct Non-Government Entrepreneur of China” by
China Non-Government Enterprise Directors Association*
(FRRECERBE) in 2009. He holds an Executive
Master Degree of Business Administration from Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business. Mr. Liu Feng is the
father of Mr. Liu Zhongxiang, the executive Director.

Mr. Chen Xian (“Mr. Chen"), aged 54, was appointed
as an executive Director and the vice-chairman of the
Company on 12 October 2007 and was re-designated as
the chairman of the Company on 30 November 2007.
Mr. Chen was re-designated again as the vice-chairman
of the Company on 17 August 2012. He is also a director
of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chen is one
of the founders of a sizeable property development
company in Zhuhai, the PRC and has been a member of
the senior management of a subsidiary of that company.
Mr. Chen was mainly responsible for the investment and
development of real estate projects of such companies.
Before joining those companies, Mr. Chen worked as a
senior member of certain stated-owned companies and
the local authority. He has more than 16 years of extensive
experience in the investment and development of real
estate projects. He holds a Master Degree of Business
Administration from the Asia International Open University
(Macau).

*  For identification purpose only
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Mr. Lau Sai Chung (“Mr. Lau”), aged 62, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 15 September
2006 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 30
November 2007. Mr. Lau was also appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company on 30 November 2007.
He is currently also a director of several subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor degree in Commerce
with major in Accounting from the University of Alberta,
Canada and has over 20 years’ experience in the field
of banking and finance both in Hong Kong and North
America. Mr. Lau is also a fellow member of the Institute
of Canadian Bankers and The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors, and a member of The Hong Kong Independent
Non-Executive Director Association.

Mr. Liu Zhongxiang, aged 30, was appointed as an
executive Director on 30 September 2015. He is currently
also a director of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Liu Zhongxiang obtained a diploma of legal secretary from
the People’s Public Security University of China (A B AR
ANZZAKE)in 2009. Mr. Liu Zhongxiang has seven years
of experience in diverse businesses, such as construction
and sugar production and trading. Mr. Liu Zhongxiang is
the son of Mr. Liu Feng, the chairman and the executive
Director of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael (“Mr. Poon”), aged 46, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 29
November 2006. Mr. Poon is also the chairman of the audit
committee, a member of the nomination committee and a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company.
Mr. Poon is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a member of CPA Australia
and a practicing member of Asset Management Association
of China. He holds a bachelor degree in administrative
studies from York University in Canada and a master
degree in practicing accounting with Monash University in
Australia. Mr. Poon worked for an international accounting
firm and was responsible for providing business advisory
and assurance services for listed companies. He has over 16
years of experience in financial reporting, business advisory,
auditing, taxation, accounting, merger and acquisition. Mr.
Poon is currently an independent non-executive director of
Smartac Group China Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 395),
the shares of which are listed on main board of the Stock
Exchange since 29 January 2010. Mr. Poon is also currently
an independent non-executive director of Gtyneon Holding
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Singapore
Exchange Limited, since 11 August 2017. Mr. Poon was an
alternate to Mr. Amir Gal-Or, a non-executive director of
Vincent Medical Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1612) from
February 2016 to July 2017, and the chief executive officer
and company secretary of Anxin-China Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1149) from February 2017 to May 2017,
the shares of which are listed on main board of the Stock
Exchange.
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Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen (“Mr. Char”), aged 69, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
30 September 2015. Mr. Char is also the chairman of the
nomination committee, a member of the audit committee
and a member of the remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. Char is currently a Barrister-at-Law and since
22 May 2007, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of National Investments Fund Limited
(Stock Code: 1227), whose shares are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Char holds a bachelor of
laws (Honours) from the University of London and a master
degree in Social Sciences from the University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Char was also the chief investigator and senior
assignment officer of the Independent Commission Against
Corruption in Hong Kong from 1976 to 2004 and a chief
executive officer of Garner Forest Industries Limited.

Ms. Li Jiansheng (“Ms. Li”), aged 63, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 30 September
2015. Ms. Li is also the chairman of the remuneration
committee, a member of the audit committee and a
member of the nomination committee of the Company.
Ms. Li was graduated from Dongbei University of Finance
and Economics of China (FFEIERILEAAEARER) in July 1982,
majoring in infrastructure economics. In October 2006, Ms.
Li obtained the certificate for practicing as PRC Corporate
Legal Advisor from the Ministry of Personnel, the Ministry
of Justice and the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Counsel of the
PRC. She was recognized as a senior accountant by the
Ministry of Personnel of the PRC in 1993 and has been a
member of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants
of the PRC since 1999. Ms. Li obtained a master degree
in Executive MBA from HEC Paris in 2007 and a master
degree in Science in Applied Accounting and Finance
from Hong Kong Baptist University in 2011. Ms. Li, for
the period from September 2007 to March 2014, was
appointed as vice president, chief financial officer and
general legal advisor of China Railway Group Limited (Stock
Code: 0390), the shares of which are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED #E LigEmARAR
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 —2—t£5#H

Biographical Details of Directors

w5

EHREE([EXRE]) AT Am RN Z
—hAFNA=ZTHEZAARBILIIERITES -
BERENMEXTARRRIREZZESERF BRZE
BEgXKENYFMNEZESEKE - BLERKEA
— U KEZEMM B-_ZTTLtFRA-T_HiE
EZAABERKEEZSBR AR (BMHRE:
1227 " ERORBAER W) B IER
TEF - BEERFAERAKRE (RE) L1282
ThkEBRELGNEB LB -BEEAER
—NEAREFEE_ZTNFHENECETHEERK
RELAEFTARSRBE T HE TN
HRMITEERRARTHRER -

FEE T ([FE2rL]) AT=Z2F% %
—RAFENAZ+HEZTABIYIFRTE
E-FUTNEEARATHEEETIE B
“EEeKERRBRZEEKE TR
—NWNZFLtAEXENPERILIKEREEE
KEEE- R _ZTTF+A TR LESTF
BAEH AEHRBEERBEEEEEE SR
ZESREMNFTROCEZEZEMAERTE K
R—NMN=ZFEFBEHASTHERIT A= R LETE
FE—hANMhEEKATEEIMESTMBE
CE-TRTN _TTLFEBERSEHS
Bt(HEC Paris)s & THEBRBLTEUERN -Z
——FESEEReABEASHHESRBEL
B -FUTR _EE+FNAE T —NF
ZAPHEZTAPRAPEBRHER QA (B
BRI 0390  ERH R ERLET) &
WE - TS BEE R ABE R EAR o



Corporate Governance Report

The Board and the management of the Company are
committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures.

The Company'’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles and the CG Code set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

Throughout the Year, the Company has complied with all
of the Code Provisions of the CG Code, except A.6.7.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company
confirms that all Directors have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the Year.

COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of
the management of the business and affairs of the Group
with the objective of enhancing shareholders value. As at
31 December 2017, the Board consisted of eight Directors,
comprising five executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. At least one of the independent
non-executive Director possess appropriate professional
accounting qualifications and financial management
expertise, which complies with the requirement of the
Listing Rules.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Feng (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Xian (Vice-Chairman)

Mr. Lau Sai Chung (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Xia Dan (Resigned on 31 January 2018)

Mr. Liu Zhongxiang
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael
Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen
Ms. Li Jiansheng

The Directors’ biographical information are set out in pages
13 to 16 of this annual report. All executive Directors have
given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Group. Each executive Director has sufficient experience to
hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively.
There is no relationship among the members of the Board
except Mr. Liu Feng is the father of Mr. Liu Zhongxiang.

The Board has delegated the executive Directors with
authority and responsibility by handling the management
functions and operations of the day-to-day business of
the Company, while reserving certain key matters for the
approval by the Board. The types of decisions to be taken
by the Board include annual and interim period financial
reporting and control, equity fund raising, declaration of
interim dividend and making recommendation of final
dividend or other distributions, notifiable transactions
under Chapters 14 and 14A of the Listing Rules and
making recommendation for capital reorganization or
scheme arrangement of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board and each Director have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management.
A Director who considers a need for independent
professional advice in order to perform his/her duties
as a Director may convene, or request the secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”) to convene,
a meeting of the Board to approve the seeking of
independent legal or other professional advice.

The Company adopts the practice of holding meetings
of the Board regularly for at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Ad-hoc meetings will also
be convened if necessary to discuss the overall strategy
as well as the operation and financial performance of the
Group. Notice of meeting of the Board will be sent to all
Directors at least 14 days prior to a regular Board meeting.
Reasonable notice will be given to Directors for ad-hoc
Board meetings. Directors may participate either in person
or through electronic means of communications.

During the Year, five meetings of the Board were held,
Directors are provided with relevant information to make
informed decisions. The attendance of Directors at the
Board meetings and the Board committees’ meetings is set
out in the table below:
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Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional
Development

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, should keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the business and
activities of the Group. Each newly appointed Director
would receive a comprehensive induction package covering
business operations, policy and procedures of the Company
as well as the general, statutory and regulatory obligations
of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules
and other relevant regulatory requirements. The Group
also provides briefings and other training to develop and
refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills, and update all
Directors on the latest developments regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirement to
ensure compliance and to enhance their awareness of good
corporate governance practices.

During the Year, the Directors participated in the
continuous professional developments in relation to

:"orpcrate Governance Report
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Directors and the business of the Group in the following
manner:
Attended
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Materials
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Executive Directors BITES
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Corporate Governance Report

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman of the Company (the
“Chairman”) and chief executive officer of the Company
(the "Chief Executive Officer”) are segregated and are
currently held by Mr. Liu Feng and Mr. Lau Sai Chung
respectively. The Chairman is responsible for the Group’s
strategic planning and the management of the operations
of the Board, while the Chief Executive Officer takes the
lead in the Group's operations and business development.
There is a clear division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer which provides a
balance of power and authority.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the independent non-executive Directors are appointed
for a term of three years, and subject to re-election on
retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting
of the Company (the “AGM") in accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association (the “Articles”). Two of
the independent non-executive Directors have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under Rule
3.10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has received the
annual confirmation of independence from each of the
independent non-executive Directors as required under
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company, based on such
confirmations, considers all independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) with written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code. On 20 December 2013,
the Board adopted a set of the revised terms of reference
of the Nomination Committee, which has brought it in line
with the new Listing Rules relating to the board diversity
with effective from 1 September 2013. The revised terms
of reference setting out the Nomination Committee’s
authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
existing Nomination Committee has the following three
members:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen (Chairman)
Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael
Ms. Li Jiansheng

The Nomination Committee has adopted a written
nomination procedure specifying the process and criteria
for the selection and recommendation of candidates for
directorship of the Company.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are reviewing and supervising the structure, size and
composition of the Board, identifying qualified individuals
to become members of the Board, assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

Potential new Directors are identified and submitted to the
Nomination Committee for approval. The nomination of
Directors should take into consideration the candidate’s
qualification, ability and potential contribution to the
Company. A candidate to be appointed as an independent
non-executive Director must also satisfy the independence
criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. No Director
was newly appointed during the Year.
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Corporate Governance Report

During the Year, one meeting was held by the Nomination
Committee to recommend the re-appointment of the
Directors standing for re-election at the AGM, to review
the size, structure, composition as well as diversity of
the Board, to assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors and to consider the changes of
Directors. The Nomination Committee has also reviewed
the board diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness and
considered that the Group has achieved the objectives of
the board diversity policy during the Year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with the written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms
of reference setting out the Remuneration Committee’s
authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The Remuneration Committee has adopted the operation
model where it performs an advisory role to the Board,
with the Board retaining the final authority to approve the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management. The existing Remuneration
Committee has the following three members:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Li Jiansheng (Chairman)
Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael
Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are making recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of Directors and senior management, and reviewing and
approving the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board from time to time.
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Details of the remuneration of Directors are set out in
note 12 to the consolidated financial statements. During
the Year, two meetings of Remuneration Committee were
held for, inter alia, reviewing the remuneration policy and
structure for as well as the remuneration packages of all
Directors and the senior management and considering
the remuneration packages of all newly appointed
Directors. No Director was involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code. On 31 December 2015, the Board
adopted a set of the revised terms of reference of the
Audit Committee, which has brought it in line with the
new requirement of the Listing Rules in relation to the
internal controls by introducing the concept of the risk
management. The revised terms of reference setting out
the Audit Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities
are available on both the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. The existing Audit Committee has the
following three members:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael (Chairman)
Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen
Ms. Li Jiansheng

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee
include making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditors and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors, and any questions
of resignation or dismissal of such auditors; reviewing the
interim and annual reports and accounts of the Group; and
supervising the financial reporting process and effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED #E Lig&EmARAR
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 —2—t&£5#H

-~ Corporate Governance Report
L EEERBE

EEMezHBHIRGEEMBRRMF 12 -
RAFE FHEESARTMAREH EN
(HFBR)BHARREZBEETLSNERE
ZHMBR RE -FHESREEEZEHZ
TEFZHFNES BMBEF2TEEAFZ

M -

BEREES

ARARLBEZZEG[ERREBE T ET
CREATARVEORERE -R-_F—1
FT-A=+t—"H EZ2eXNERZEEN
—FRIBBEHRE I HEREDMRAAR
RIABBREEMSHOAMEZ2HRTE &
BEEZZEER) BEAMETZEEIRR
HEATRANRA MY M XEGER T
ZEERAAUT=ZEKE

BYFHTES

WEBEEE (FE)
EHBEE
FEATL

ERZEETIZREMIBEREMZEZE &
ERERLAEFSFLES TERINEZHK
B2 Bl & K BE AL R 30 - A I B 3% 5 i 2R AD 2 B¢
THRREB2EMNEE: EHPHRS F
BLAEEKRE  URERMEHBREF LA
SERREEMASEERGEE AR -



Corporate Governance Report

During the Year, three meetings were held by the Audit
Committee to review and make recommendation to the
Board for approval of the audited results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2016 and the unaudited
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2017, to
discuss the accounting policies and practices which may
affect the Group with the management of the Company
and the Company’s auditors, to make recommendation
on the appointment of auditor to fill the causal vacancy
following the resignation of the ex-auditor and re-
appointment of external auditor for the approval of the
shareholders in the AGM, to review the fees charged by
the external auditor; and approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of external auditor and to review
the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems and internal audit functions of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

All members of the Board are responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions. The terms of reference
of corporate governance functions was adopted by the
Board on 29 March 2012 and is in compliance with the CG
Code. During the Year, the Board has reviewed the policy
of the corporate governance and the corporate governance
report of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

On 20 December 2013, the Company has adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Policy”) setting out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
education background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to
implement the Policy and review such objectives from time
to time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the
progress made towards achieving those objectives.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision

s A
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will be made upon the merits and contribution that the

selected candidates will bring to the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the information
(including sex, age, educational background, professional

experience, term of appointment and designation) of the

Board is as follows:

BEANEBUA-RNZ T LBERSELE B
BEARRER - Fik  XERH
BORERANB RRBRABZERERAR
EERFRZERMRE -

2 db B2 = 3
EEs HEK

RAFHRAH EFEEN (BEMR - Fik-
HEER BXELR FHRER)WT:

No. of Director

EEAH

Age group:
FhER

Gender:

R

Educational background:

HEHR

Length of service (year):

R EFR (F)

Designation:

(=3

Below 41
VA AVN
41 to0 50
41E508%
51 to 60
51Z605%
Over 60
6037 A

Male
==

=2
Female

X

Hong Kong and Macau
&8 MR

The PRC

)

Overseas

850

1-5
1Z54F
6-10
6Z104F
Over 10
105 LA +

Executive Director
WITESR
Independent Non-executive Director
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For the purpose of implementation of the Policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted:

1. at least one third of the members of the Board shall
be independent non-executive Directors; and

2. at least one of the members of the Board shall
have obtained accounting or other professional
qualifications.

The Board has achieved the measurable objectives in the
Policy.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was appointed as the auditor
of the Company with effect from 14 July 2017 to fill the
casual vacancy following the resignation of SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited and to hold office until the conclusion of
the next annual general meeting of the Company.

The audit works of the Group for the Year were performed
by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
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The total fee paid/payable in respect of the statutory audit
and non-audit services provided by external auditors is set

out in the following table:

- Corporate Governance Report

INEB R EEDFTIRIE 2 A E R B R IER B RGE 2
Bt/ ERzEREAHEEHINRTE:

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered P2 {3 PR 7% B ENER
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
BE-Z2—+tH& HZE-_ZT—FXHF
+=A=+—-8B +ZA=+—H
IEFE IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited EXPAM (B SR EB
FrER AR
— Audit services — ZERTE - 1,360
— Non-audit services — JEZ R
Interim review AR HAZE R - 580
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu =g BER S AT
— Audit services — ZERB 1,280 -
— Non-audit services — SEZ R
Interim review FRHIZE RS 550 -
Total fee paid/payable Bt BN ZERBE 1,830 1,940
28 SISy wRssamss
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Fu Lui, was appointed on
2 July 2010. He is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and that the Board
is fully briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments and has regarded to them
when making decisions. The Company Secretary is
also responsible for advising the Board on the Group's
compliance with the continuing obligations of the Listing
Rules, Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share
Repurchases, Companies Ordinance, Securities and Futures
Ordinance and other applicable laws, rules and regulations.
During the Year, Mr. Fu Lui undertook not less than 15
hours of professional training to update his skills and
knowledge.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have acknowledged for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements at the end of the
Year which gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flows for the
Year. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for
the Year, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis. The statement by the auditor of the
Company regarding their reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 79 to 88 of this
annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that
sound and effective risk management and internal controls
are maintained, while the management of the Company is
charged with the responsibility to design and implement an
internal control systems to manage risks. A sound system
of risk management and internal controls is designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework of
the Group

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of risk
management and internal controls and reviewing its
effectiveness. The Audit Committee supports the Board
in monitoring the Group's risk exposures, the design and
operating effectiveness of the underlying risk management
and internal control systems. The management of the
Company assesses and presents regular reports to the
Audit Committee on its own assessments of key risks, the
strengths and weaknesses of the overall internal control
systems, with action plans to address the weaknesses.
External auditor also reports on any control issues identified
in the course of its work. Taking these into consideration,
the Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of
the Group's system of risk management and internal
controls, and reports to the Board on such reviews. Work
and findings of the management of the Company are
considered by the Board in forming its own view on the
effectiveness of the system.

Currently the Group engages independent professional
team in performing internal audit work after considering
the independence, flexibility, and overall efficiency. The
Group will review on an annual basis the need for having
an internal audit team to perform the function.
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Risk Management and Internal Control Framework
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Risk Management and Internal Control Systems and
Procedures

Control Environment — The Group has been operating
under an established and appropriate control environment
with reference to principles of “Internal Control and
Risk Management — A Basis Framework” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Risk management and internal controls cover effective
operations, reliable financial reporting and compliance.

Risk Assessment — The Group continues to drive
improvements to its risk management process and the
quality of risk information generated, while at the same
time maintaining a simple and practical approach. We seek
to have risk management features embedded within our
operations, aiming to have a risk management system that
is practised on a day-to-day basis by our operating units.

The Board reviews and understands the risk factors of the
Group and operations annually, and the management of
the Company continuously monitors the scope and quality
of ongoing risk management and internal control systems.
The “Top-down” monitoring ensures risk management
features embedded within the operations and operated
effectively.

Meanwhile, the heads of operation units participate in
risk identification from “Bottom-up” so as to identify the
Group's overall risks.

Control Activities — The Group’s core property
development business and trading of raw sugar involve
well-established business processes. Control activities have
traditionally been built on top-level reviews, segregation
of duties and physical controls. We have been formalizing
and documenting the control processes in policies and
procedures. Written policies and procedures with defined
limits of delegated authority are in place, which facilitate
effective segregation of duties and controls.
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Planning and budgeting processes are one of key control
activities of the Group, which have been refined to
take into consideration risk factors. All operating units
prepare their respective operating plans pursuant to
corporate objectives for consideration. In this process,
they are required to identify material risks that may
impact the achievement of their business objectives.
Action items to mitigate the identified risks are developed
for implementation as well as for achieving the budget
and business objectives. Variance analyses are regularly
performed and reported to the management of the
Company and the Board. These help identify deficiencies
and enable timely remedial actions to be taken.

Capital expenditures monitoring is also significant to the
capital-intensive nature of the property business of the
Group. Depending on the nature and the size of the
projects, detailed analyses of expected capital expenditures
are submitted to the heads of operating units, executive
Directors or the Board for consideration and approval.

Monitoring Activities — The Board and Audit Committee
oversee the process, monitored by internal and external
professionals of the Group. The management of the
Company has emphasized in its updated reports to
the Audit Committee on movements of top risks and
appropriate mitigating measures. There is at least one Audit
Committee meeting substantially devoted to risks items.
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Procedures and Internal Controls for Handling and

Dissemination of Inside Information

In handing and dissemination of inside information, the
Group:

will conduct immediate dissemination once inside
information is available and/or respective decision is
made, except the inside information falling into the
Safe Harbours of Securities and Futures Commission
that allow non-disclosure;

complies with applicable laws, rules and guidelines
on disclosure of inside information issued by
Securities and Futures Commission;

decides and implements monitoring procedures
regarding dissemination of inside information; and

communicates with relevant persons about
corporate information disclosure practices with
respective training.

REVIEW ON EFFECTIVENESS OF RISK
MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
IN 2017

The Board and the Audit Committee reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems of the Company

BERRBAREEHEFAABERERE

EFRENEHRARTBEE T E NEE:

- —EAEABEBEERSHEFLHBER

ERANK M BKIEZEARTHEER
REFMPERIBRENLTEE
j&':':‘

/>

0]

/\FE

- AEEABEBRIETERERRER
AEEFMMEEBERZESHMN
(AT BHBEWERES)

~  TUREERARREHNEELN
R R

- CAMBHRBABBEEERLEERR
BREROATERLEHEAREE -

—E-LERFEAREERAIPEE 2K

EXZeERZEEEF QU RRNERE
32 Ko P D BRI 2 ﬂ“ﬁﬁ RAFEE EF

ERAEREERABEZEHEARN R

for the Year and such review is conducted annually. The

Board opts that during the Year, risk management and TR IR %Tﬁ’i lﬁﬁfﬁwk CEFE
internal control systems are effective and sufficient, and T EREEULEREEINEAEEKRKER

TENBEREH BT %ﬁl/m%K%la.ﬁr
AEEF LM EERBENER BTEER

no event leads to material impact on Group’s financial,
operational and compliance controls. Respective reviews

cover the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and KB - BIREREERERAE URE@H
experience, training programmes and budget of the BmERE CEMBRA) HEZEF-

Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions, and the effectiveness of the Group's processes
for financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.
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RECOMMENDED BEST PRACTICES

Group'’s Risk Factors

As a basis of risk management, we should understand the
Group's existing risk factors and respective change from
time to time. Listed below are the nature of significant risk
factors that the Group is facing, whilst the listed factors will
not be exclusive:

Risk factors

o The Group may be unable to sell property
investment at expected prices or terms due to
volatility in the property market of the PRC.

o The Group is required to comply with numerous
government rules and new regulations to be
promulgated from time to time, and may be
affected by tightening measures launched by the
PRC government for regulating the real estate
industry.

o The business of the Group may be significantly
affected if the engaged external construction
contractors encounter any problem during
development of property given our full reliance on
them to conduct all the construction projects.

o Principal revenues and expenses of the Group —
Property development business are denominated
in Renminbi. Investors may indirectly invest in
the assets denominated in Renminbi. If Renminbi
weakens against Hong Kong dollars, the asset value
of the shares denominated in Hong Kong dollars will
decline.

o Implementation fluency and efficiency of exchange
control of the PRC will mitigate the ability of the
Group's fund transfer.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board makes its endeavour to maintain an ongoing
and transparent communication with all shareholders
and, in particular, use general meetings to communicate
with shareholders and encourage their participation. A
shareholder’s communication policy was adopted by
the Board on 29 March 2012 aiming at providing the
shareholders and potential investors with ready and timely
access to balanced and understandable information of
the Company. The Company also uses various other
means of communication with its shareholders, such as
publication of annual and interim reports, announcements,
circulars and additional information on the Group's
business activities and development on the Company’s
website: www.chinauptown.com.hk.

Under the Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code,
independent non-executive directors and other non-
executive directors should attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. The whole Board and the auditor of
the Company had attended the 2017 AGM to answer
questions of the shareholders of the Company except
that Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael (the chairman of Audit
Committee) could not attend the 2017 AGM due to
other business engagement but he had appointed the
other attended Directors as his representatives to answer
questions of the shareholders of the Company. In the
future, the Company will endeavour to encourage all the
Directors to attend general meetings.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders
and potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from
investors, stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to the
Board or the Company Secretary may be sent by post to
the Company’s head office and principal place of business
at Suite 1501, 15/F, Tower 1, Silvercord, 30 Canton Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to the Articles, an extraordinary general meeting
may be convened by the Board upon requisition by any
one or more shareholders holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company and the
securities being held carrying the right of voting at any
general meetings of the Company. The shareholder shall
make a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary at the Company's head office and principal
place of business at Suite 1501, 15/F, Tower 1, Silvercord,
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
specifying the shareholding information of the shareholder,
his/her contact details and the proposal regarding
any specified transaction/business and its supporting
documents.

Procedures for putting forward Proposals at a General
Meeting

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office
and principal place of business at Suite 1501, 15/F.,, Tower
1, Silvercord, 30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding information of the
shareholder, his/her contact details and the proposal he/
she intends to put forward at general meeting regarding
any specified transaction/business and its supporting
documents.
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Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office and principal place
of business at Suite 1501, 15/F., Tower 1, Silvercord, 30
Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong or send
email to info@chinauptown.com.hk.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at
the general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there is no change in the Company's
constitutional documents.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

INTRODUCTION
About The Report

Reporting Guidelines

This is the second “Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG") Report issued by China
Uptown Group Company Limited (“Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”). It
has been prepared in compliance with the ESG
Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities of the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Reporting Scope

This report covers ESG performance of the Company
and its subsidiaries in both Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (PRC) from 1st January
2017 to 31st December 2017. This includes our
office in Hong Kong and the Group's property
development business in the PRC.

Feedback

The report aims to be plain, clear and easy to read.
The Group shall in the future continue to improve
on content and delivery of information disclosed
in the report. We welcome your feedback on the
report for 2017 and any suggestions you have in
terms of what you would like to see incorporated in
our future reports. To contact us, you may do so at:
info@chinauptown.com.hk.
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ESG Management Approach

China Uptown has been actively responding to
environment and social related aspects. Apart from
maintaining business growth, we are committed
to bearing our social responsibility. Acknowledging
the impact of its business on the environment and
the society, the Group invests in environmental
protection, occupational health and safety as well
as quality assurance, especially working closely with
its stakeholders for mitigating risks and striving for
outstanding performance in related aspects. We
believe that such commitments help build a better,
sustainable business.

As a property developer operating in China,
we are aware of the stakeholders’ expectations
on upgrading of environment related practices
followed in our business operations. We monitor
construction projects strictly in terms of managing
the site environment, reducing emissions, pollution
and wastes in order to minimize the environmental
impact of the construction work. Our operations
meet all relevant environmental laws and national
standards, and we strive for greener construction
methods whenever possible.

Maintaining close communication with our
business partners is key to the Group’s sustainable
development, especially in aspects of occupational
health and safety and product quality. We have
established effective monitoring mechanisms
for ensuring safe and high quality construction.
Besides communicating with our suppliers and
contractors on safety and quality standards,
stringent acceptance inspections and procedures
are implemented for preventing safety hazards and
meeting customers’ expectations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group also attaches great importance to staff
development. Our training programmes provide
opportunities to our staff not only to attain
necessary skills but to grow and achieve higher
goals in their careers. We are striving for a win-win
situation where the Company and its employees
benefit through achieving common goals.

We understand that it is our long-term responsibility
to protect the environment and enhance the
social well-being of communities. The Group is
committed to improving its ESG performance step-
by-step through cooperating with stakeholders and
we look forward to their valuable feedbacks and
suggestions.

Environmental

The Group manages the environmental practices
by regularly monitoring and reporting on relevant
performance indicators. During the year, the Group
has complied with relevant applicable environmental
laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (the PRC) including certain
Environment Air Quality Standard, Environmental
Quality Standards for Surface Water, Environmental
Quality Standard for Noise.

In particular, we strive for continuous improvement
in environmental performance of existing property
development projects, including integration of eco-
efficient practices. As the awareness of our business
partners is essential for fulfilling our environmental
goals, we are committed to working in partnership
with suppliers to ensure they are committed to
adhering to our environmental standards and green
procurement policy.
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For our offices, the Group is committed to the
principle of recycling. We implement green office
practices such as double-sided printing and copying,
re-deployment of office furniture when possible, use
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of recycled paper for printing and copying, reducing o
energy consumption by switching off idle lightings,

air conditioning and electrical appliances, etc.

Environmental Management REE®E

As a property project developer in Maoming, we
cooperate with our contractors to ensure they
achieve environmental objectives, for example, by
following ISO 14001 Environmental Management
System. Also, we include appropriate terms
and conditions in construction contracts to
ensure contractors are complied with all relevant
environmental protection laws and regulations
and implement effective measures to meet the
requirements of the environmental regulator,
including clearing the site and removing all
construction facilities, remaining materials and
waste.

In accordance with the environmental impact
assessment conducted for our project, we make
sure there are measures devised by our contractors
to mitigate these impacts along the different stages
of our projects. Further to the completion of the
first and second phases of our property projects
in Maoming, environmental on-site inspection
was conducted by Maoming City Environmental
Protection Department, complying with the
requirements stipulated in the Environmental
Impact Assessment report. Below are the measures
taken are in respect of mitigating air, water, noise
pollution, as well as reducing municipal solid waste.

Dust

The construction sites are sprinkled to reduce and
prevent re-entrainment of dust. All disposed waste
materials, soil and other construction waste are
cleared away promptly and covered by a cloth if they
are stored for more than one week.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Noise

Construction work is strictly prohibited during
rest hours. Besides, all transportation vehicles
are restricted from honking. Low-noise emitting
machines are used whenever possible. For high-
noise emitting equipment, noise-elimination
measures are implemented so as to reduce the
disturbance caused to nearby residents.

Waste

We acknowledge that construction waste is
generated during the process. Regulations are
enforced so that they are not disposed on site
carelessly. Metallic waste such as fixtures can be
reused and recycled. Domestic waste is handled by
the domestic hygiene department after collection. In
2017, no hazardous waste was produced. The total
amount of non-hazardous waste produced at our
business activities in PRC was 9 tonnes, while for
our Hong Kong operations, the amount was 0.22
tonnes.

Effluent

Water discharge network and rainwater collection
system are in place. Domestic sewage is collected
and discharged into the sewage treatment plant
in Maoming after pre-treatment in a sceptic tank.
Temporary water collection pool and sedimentation
basin are in place on site to collect washing and
cooling water used in machines for oil separation
and sedimentation. After processing, the water can
be reused in construction activities.

Emissions Control

By communicating with our stakeholders, including
contractors and suppliers, we aim to achieve
collective effort to reduce, reuse and recycle waste,
including construction and demolition waste
and waste generated from part of our buildings’
operations.
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We monitor measures implemented by our
contractors for controlling emissions generated in
property development projects in Maoming. Smoke
shafts are placed at higher floors of residential
buildings so as to collect kitchen flue gas and
discharge it collectively from the roof. Facilities to
discharge waste gas emitted by generators and the
underground car garage have been in place; waste
gas is discharged into the atmosphere from the roof.

Resources Consumption

In order to achieve sustainable use of resources,
we have been adopting eco-efficient programs
for our operations. During the year, we have
reduced energy consumption and carried out water
conservation measures to enhance energy and
water usage efficiency. The table below presents an
overview of resources consumption at our business
operations in Hong Kong and PRC for 2017.

nvironmental, Social and Governance Report
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Carbon emissions

The Group is striving to control and reduce carbon
emissions of our operations by exercising controls
and negotiate and communicate with stakeholders
including contractors and suppliers for similar
actions. Besides, we explore the potential for using
renewable energy in all new property developments
when applicable. On an ongoing basis, we
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have been gradually taking GHG emissions into Eeo
consideration when making business decisions. The
following table reports the Group’s total carbon
emissions from it business operations in Hong Kong
and PRC in 2017.
Carbon Emissions Unit 2017
B B R B —EB—tHF
Direct emissions (Scope 1) B # ik (& E — tCOze 454
k=Y (774
=
== ==0
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) % HEmk (&E =) tCO2e 1,075.8
=R 174
i =
==E=ER
OUR PEOPLE & COMMUNITY EMNEIRHE

Our employees are the cornerstone of the Group’s
success, and we put strong emphasis on providing a
favorable workplace to them.

Treating all employees in a fair manner regarding
remuneration, leave, resignation and termination
arrangements in accordance with relevant laws
and regulations, the Group selects and recruits
employees based on merit, regardless of age, race,
gender, religion, family status or disability.
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We provide equal opportunities to employees for
training and development, based on their talents
and needs, enabling them to reach their full
potential. Reward and promotion are based on
ability, performance, contribution and experience.
During the reporting period, the Group has strictly
complied with all relevant labour and employment
laws. Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited
in our recruitment policy.

Committed to maintaining a diverse, safe and
respectful workplace, the Group has a non-
discrimination policy in place. No workplace
harassment is allowed. Employees are encouraged
to directly report to the senior management if they
experience such incidents in which investigations will
be initiated immediately. Below is an overview of the
composition of our employees by gender, age and
position:

@ Male B¢
® Female &Ltk

® <30

Figure 1: Employees composition by gender,
age and position

In 2017, our total turnover rate and new hire rate
were 15%. The following section presents our
turnover and new hire rate by age category for the
reporting period.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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B Turnover Rate B TRk =&

Figure 2: Turnover and new hire rate by age
category

Health and Safety

The Group ensures safety practices at construction
sites are strictly complied with national standards.
Sub-contractors are required to set up emergency
action plans, to provide necessary equipment and
machines to minimize occupational hazards.

Supervising engineers carry out inspections to
monitor safety practices and performance of the
contractors during construction. A safety measures
plan is submitted to the supervising engineer and
the Group for approval before construction.

Safety training is offered to employees and assessed
continuously to maintain the standards and safety
management. Our contractors are required to
comply with all relevant environmental and hygiene
management related laws and regulations to
provide a safe and healthy working environment.
There were no work-related fatalities recorded
and no significant incidents of non-compliance on
occupational health and safety issues were reported
during the year.
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Training and Development

Employees are our greatest asset for ensuring
long-term success. We believe that it is crucial to
devote resources for training and strengthen the
competencies of our employees. Therefore, the
Group invests resources in training for employees,
including directors, senior management and
frontline staff, not only to upgrade related skills
for fulfillment of job related duties but also to
build capacity for achieving the Group’s business
goals. The Group provides suitable training and
development opportunities to assist employees to
meet their training objectives. For certain courses
which have significant impact or are related to major
updates of regulations of the group, we require
mandatory participation from relevant employees.

Regular training includes weekly customer report,
sales summary and marketing training to help
employees understand the latest market situation
while monthly training is to set future sales targets.
We have also provided specific training for opening
of model rooms, market competition, price and sales
skills to enhance the competency of our employees.
Other than internal training, the Company
encourages self-development of employees through
taking up external training programs and seminars
so as to enhance their understanding and abilities.

In 2017, 63% of male employees and 65% of
female employees received training, while 40% of
managerial staff and 85% of front line employees
were trained. The average training hours completed
per employee was 52 hours.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Community Investment

Striving to become a responsible corporate citizen,
the Group is willing to take responsibility. We
value social involvement and reach-out to the
communities in need. We made a donation of
RMB100,000 to community projects to provide
assistance and support for social development. The
Group will continue to work with partners in the
communities and expand our contribution to the
society.

Operational Excellence

By implementing good operating practice, we
believe an integrated supply chain and a stringent
process of quality assurance help us to provide high
standard properties.

Supply Chain Management

Our business involves property development from
construction phase, marketing to selling and
management. Our business partners in the supply
chain are of paramount importance in our daily
operational practices. To ensure alignment with our
values and standards, contractors and suppliers are
selected carefully based on a list of criteria, review
of past record, financial strength and dedication to
maintain high international quality, environmental
and safety standards. For best practices and
products, contractors with 1SO 9001, ISO 14001 and
OHSAS 18001 certifications are given high priority in
forming business partnerships.

We maintain a close relationship with our suppliers
and contractors with regular communication.
Items regarding construction period and details,
insurance and financial matters, quality and safety
requirements are clearly laid out in the contract to
assure standard practices along the supply chain.
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Contractors are not allowed to infringe upon any
rights of other parties when using public utilities
or interrupting the lives of the residents in the
community. We manage our supply chain by closely
monitoring and validating their ESG practices, so as
to maintain high standards and ensure alignment
of the Group’s goals, as well as serving as future
reference.

Product Responsibility

We are committed to providing the best quality
products and service to our customers. We work
with reliable suppliers and contractors to ensure
compliance to all regulatory requirements of quality,
health and safety of the construction process and
the completed properties. Contractors are required
to set up specific on-site quality and operating safety
management structures. Environmental and hygiene
conditions during construction are guided by the
government’s regulations.

Since the construction work is carried out by
contractors, monitoring of the construction process
and the final acceptance inspection is vital to
the Group in ensuring quality of the property.
Construction works in Maoming are monitored by
an independent supervising engineer appointed
by the Group, who regularly inspects materials
and equipment. Approval should be given before
commencing the construction work.

When construction is completed, and essential
requirements are met, the contractor should submit
an application to the Group to request end-of-
construction checking. Properties are checked
by professionals from the Group, the supervising
engineer and the government for quality assurance.
Inspections of the properties are carried out on-site
on aspects of fire safety, environment and quality
according to the national and provincial standards
and procedures.
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A certificate is then issued to the contractor
after approval of the construction works. For any
discrepancy identified during the checking process,
liability is assigned to the responsible party specified
in the contract, with correction and re-checking
required. All inspection reports are recorded and
kept for reference. We have already obtained the
acceptance certificate from the authority for the
completed properties in Maoming.

R HERERBRE

BRETR-KIE AR BEEES -
REYCBIE T EREMRKL  BNEERE
HARERENETEERER - FARK
WEYTCHERRBELE - RACDHEKS
MEERDEDRSERNBREES-

Government Authorities Supervising Engineer The Group
BRFER ELTR TRRE EH
I i I
Fire Safety Environment Quality
HBERE BRIR HE

Acceptance Certificate

REE

Figure 3: Procedures of acceptance inspection

Regarding property sales services, the Group
strictly adheres to ethical market communications,
including advertising and promotion. We provide
full and relevant information about our properties
to customers for making informed decisions.
In addition, we also select and coordinate with
qualified property management companies to
ensure residents are satisfied with the property.

The Group encourages and appreciates customer
feedback for the betterment of our products
and services in accordance with their needs and
opinions. During the year, we were not aware of
any incidents of non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group concerning health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of redress.
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Anti-corruption

Business ethics are viewed as important for the
Group's operations. All employees at different levels
are required to comply with anti-corruption laws
and regulations. Any discovered cases have to be
reported to the relevant authorities. Reporting to
senior management is encouraged in case of any
inappropriate gratification received or provided
to other parties or possible corruption cases.
Investigation of related matters is handled seriously
when necessary. Relevant training courses are also
provided to employees to equip them with related
knowledge.

We reject any collaboration with suppliers and
contractors who have a corruption prosecution
record, including procurement and tendering
process. Anti-corruption agreement is signed as
an appendix to contracts, which requires strict
compliance with corruption laws and regulations in
the country during the contract period.

In case of any corruption cases, the contractor may
bear the legal responsibility and for compensation of
any loss, and we reserve the right to terminate the
contract. During the reporting period, there were no
reports of any breach of laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
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Performance Data Summary

ARBERE

R HERERBRE

2017 2016
—F-tF ZE-RF

Employee Structure

EERE

By Geographical Distribution
RibiE 5
Maoming

p

Hong Kong

£

Total

st

By Age

RER

<30

31-50

>50

By Gender

=R

Male

Eegis

Female

Legid

By Educational Background
RYEBEER

Degree or above
B A E

High school or below
SHREUAT

By Employee Category
BEITHER
Management

i

Front line

R AR

60 55
11 11
71 66
26 27
39 34

6 5
36 34
35 32
50 48
21 18
34 23
37 43
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SRR CHERERERE

Unit
B

2017
—ZT—tF

Employee Structure

BERE

Employee Turnover Rate
BETRAR

By Age

BER

<30

31-50

>50

By Gender

gl

Male

St

Female

ey

Employee New Hire Rate
FEIABE

By Age

BER

<30

31-50

>50

By Gender

gl

Male

EeRis

Female

g

Percentage of Employees Trained
FIHEIEHDL

By Gender

gl

Male

B1

Female

7t

By Employee Category
BETER
Management

EIRE

Front line

Al 4%

Average training hours

F I 8K
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RIE - HERERRE

Unit 2017
By —E—+tF
Safety Safety Performance
ZE ZERR
Work-related injuries 0
T8
Lost days due to work injuries 0
EIEERITERR
Work related fatalities 0
HTEREN R G ER

Training on Occupational

Health and Safety
BxREREZ2EI
Total personal-times training 960
[EPN=HIECIS
Total training hours 580
HIE I 2
Percentage of employee trained 63%
ZIEIEDL
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CRE -HERERARE

Unit 2017
By —E—tF
Environment Total Resources Consumption
RIR ERHERE
Electricity kWh 2,040,702
EW) FTRK
Natural Gas m?3 -
RIAE, K
LPG kg 3,000
AL AR T
Petrol litre 13,651.3
i ~FH
Water Tons 25,450
PN NI
Greenhouse Gases Emissions
BEREBEK
GHG emissions tCO2e 1,121.2
A= R ESBE —EitixEE
Scope | tCOze 45.4
#HE— —&ILIREE
Scope |l tCO2e 1,075.8
HE— “E{tIREE
Air Pollutants from Vehicles
HEERSEY
NOx kg 16.4
Ea=Rl?) F
SOx kg 0.2
meaty T
PM kg 1.5
BIE R T
Waste
=37
Common waste without recycling Tons 9.22
AN BICE B REY) AWE
Community Donation RMB '000 10
Zanl 1= B ARBTT
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are engaged in (i) property
development and investment; and (ii) trading of raw sugar.
Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's turnover by business segments
and geographical segments for the Year is set out in note 6
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's results for the Year are set out in this
annual report on pages 89 to 187. The Directors do not
recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the
Year.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities,
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated
financial statements is set out on page 4 of this annual
report. This summary does not form a part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the major business segments of the Group
during the Year is as follows:

Property Development and Investment

The revenue attributed to the property development
and investment business amounted to approximately
RMB547,341,000 (2016: approximately RMB479,111,000)
representing sales of properties of approximately
RMB546,659,000 (2016: approximately RMB479,111,000)
and rental income of approximately RMB682,000 (2016:
Nil).
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The Group owns the Project. The Project would be
developed into a composite of residential and commercial
properties in three phases.

As disclosed in the Company’s 2016 annual report, the
construction of properties of phase 1 and 2 was completed
in second half of year 2016, and the properties were
delivered to the customers according to the delivery
schedule of sales agreements in second half of year 2016
and in 2017. As a result, the financial performance of the
property development business has significantly improved
since second half of year 2016. Moreover, as majority of
the properties were contracted for pre-sale in previous
years and recognised as sales in accordance with scheduled
delivery during the Year, the property development business
remains stable as compared to second half of year 2016.

During the Year, a portion of the commercial properties of
phase 1 and 2 of the Project of approximately 4,000 square
metres was leased and reclassified as investment properties
of the Group. Fair value change on investment properties
of approximately RMB43,644,000 (2016: Nil) was recorded
during the Year which contributed significantly to the
improved result.

The construction of phase 3 of the Project has commenced
in 2016 and will be completed in late 2018 and 2019.
The total gross floor area of phase 3 of the Project is
approximately 188,000 square metres with residential
and commercial properties of saleable floor area of
approximately 128,000 square metres, which mainly
consists of nine buildings of 32 floors each.
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Trading of raw sugar

The Group has started its business in trading of raw sugar
since late 2014. During the Year, turnover attributable
to the trading of raw sugar business amounted to
approximately RMB68,558,000 (2016: Nil). The sales
represented the raw sugar acquired from the supplier in
ASEAN countries and sold to the customer in Europe.
Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 22 January 2018 and 14 February 2018 and circular
of the Company dated 6 March 2018, Techwayson Trading
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
has entered into a master agreement and a supplement
agreement with China Sugar to purchase raw cane sugar
from China Sugar for a period of 34 months ended 31
December 2020. The management of the Company is of
the view that such arrangement could enhance the sugar
procurement network of the Group for a more rapid
expansion of its trading of raw sugar business.

MARKET OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

In 2017, the PRC economy remained complicated.
Tightening policies and measures of the real estate market
remained. In order to regulate the development of real
estate industry in the PRC continuously, the government
has announced a series of regulatory policies focusing on a
long-term and effective mechanism to regulate the industry
and, at the same time, develop a sustainable and healthy
growth of the real estate market.
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Government policies and financial policies were tightened,
particularly in the first and second tier cities. However,
driven by urbanization of third tier and satellite cities,
the management of the Company is confident that our
real estate project in Maoming City will not be materially
affected. In particular (1) good reputation of the Project
since the delivery of phase 1 & 2 of the Project; (2)
approximately 50% (based on planned gross floor area)
of residential properties of phase 3 of the Project were
contracted for sales during the Year; (3) average selling
price of phase 3 of the Project gradually increased and
the property market in Maoming was rather stable during
the Year and will be similar in the foreseeable future; and
(4) the local city transformation created a strong end-user
housing demands in the district of the Project.

While the Company is cautious in its investment policies,
the continuous urbanisation in the PRC and infrastructure
development in western Guangdong province, including
completion of the new regional airport and the China
high-speed railway, the management of the Company is
optimistic on the pre-sale of the remaining properties of
phase 3 of the Project which will be launched in 2018.

Regarding the trading of raw sugar business, it is the
goal of the Group to expand its supply chain worldwide
and to diversify its customer base in the coming years.
As described above, securing a steady supply source
will significantly improve the overall business flow and
enhance the ability of the Group in exploring new
customers. The raw cane sugar price is at a relatively low
range (with reference to Sugar no.11 contract of New
York Intercontinental Exchange) as compared to recent 2
years with a rather stable fluctuation in recent months. A
relatively stable price trend, however, in the view of the
management of the Company will lower the trading risk
and be beneficial in exploring new business opportunity.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations,
businesses and prospects would be affected by a number
of risks and uncertainties including market risk, credit
risk, and liquidity risk. The risk management policies and
practices of the Group are shown in notes 35 and 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group commits to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. Acting
in an environmentally responsible manner, the Group
endeavours to comply with laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopt effective measures to
achieve efficient use of resources, energy saving and waste
reduction.

The Group also commits to the principle and practice of
recycling and reducing. To help conserve the environment,
it implements green office practices such as re-deployment
of office furniture as far as possible, encourage use of
recycled paper for printing and copying, double-sided
printing and copying, reduce energy consumption by
switching off idle lightings, air conditioning and electrical
appliances.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. During the Year, there was no
material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group.

Relationship with Suppliers, Customers and other
Stakeholders

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a
good relationship with its suppliers, customers and other
stakeholders to meet its immediate and long-term goals.
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During the Year, there were no material and significant
dispute between the Group and its suppliers, customers
and/or other stakeholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the memorandum of association of the
Company and Articles, the applicable laws and regulations,
every Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them may incur or sustain in the
execution of their duties in their offices. Such permitted
indemnity provision has been in force throughout the Year.
The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and
officers of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE
OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s ordinary share
capital and share options are set out in notes 25 and 26 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles and the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares of the Company
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s shares.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group during
the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 93 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2017, including the share premium less the accumulated
losses of the Company, available for distribution, calculated
in accordance with the provisions of Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately
RMB25,492,000 (2016: approximately RMB42,438,000).

Under the laws of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. The reserves of the
Company available for distribution further depend on the
dividend distributable by the Company’s subsidiaries.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers were less than 30% of the Group's total revenue
for the Year.

The information in respect of the Group’s purchases
attributable to the major suppliers during the Year is as
follows:

TEEFREER

RAFE AEEBAAREPEGERAHEERIN
AREBEEWE230% °

WA [T - 7 o B L R S A AR OB A 1
e

Percentage of
the Group’s total

purchases

EEEH

Bat

The largest supplier =AM 77%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate R ERE AT 93%

At no time during the Year, none of the Directors, their
close associates or any shareholders of the Company
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the total number of the Company’s shares
in issue) had any beneficial interest in the five largest
customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the report date are:
Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Feng (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Xian (Vice-Chairman)

Mr. Lau Sai Chung (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Xia Dan (Resigned on 31 January 2018)

Mr. Liu Zhongxiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael

Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen
Ms. Li Jiansheng
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Mr. Liu Feng, Mr. Lau Sai Chung and Mr. Char Shik Ngor
Stephen shall retire from office by rotation pursuant
to article 87(1) of the Articles, and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in pages 13
to 16 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company without fixed term.
Each of the executive Directors may receive double pay
and discretionary bonus, the amount of which will be
determined by the Board as its absolute discretion having
regard to the operation results of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael, Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen and
Ms. Li jiansheng, has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of three years.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a significant beneficial interest, either
direct or indirect, in any contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any its
subsidiaries was a party at any time during the Year.
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INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael,
Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen and Ms. Li Jiansheng, an
annual confirmation of their independence pursuant to
the Listing Rules and the Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RELATED PARTY/CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Directors consider that those related party transactions
disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements did not fall under the definition of “connected
transactions” or “continuing connected transactions”
(as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
which are required to comply with any of the reporting,
announcement or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules. The Directors
confirmed that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transaction which
happened after the Year are under the section “Events
After the Reporting Period”.

Save as disclosed above, there were no significant related
party transactions and connected transactions entered into
by the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics, and approved by the Board.

Details of the related party and connected party
transactions are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions
of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the Part XV of the SFO) (1) which are required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were
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taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the KB HGREBEFEESFEMAEBHNAR
SFO); or (2) which are required, pursuant to section 352 of &H‘éﬁ?& FiomRABIT

the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or

(3) which are required, pursuant to the Model Code to be

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as

follows:

Approximate
percentage
of the total

Number of number of

underlying shares of

Number of shares held the Company

ordinary pursuant to in issue

share(s) share options E NN

Capacity/Nature of held BEBRE ERITRH

Name of Directors interests Jiig=3 BENEE BYHEN

Esns 513/ BRME EERYE gng ¢! BOl

Mr. Liu Zhongxiang Beneficial owner - 15,000,000 0.98
kst ERBEAA (Note 1)
(PEET)

Interest of 242,105,262 - 15.88

a controlled corporation (Note 2)
REH R RMER (Ki3k2)

Mr. Liu Feng Beneficial owner - 4,000,000 0.26
2B r s ERBEEA (Note 1)
(PEET)

Mr. Chen Xian Beneficial owner - 10,000,000 0.66
RELE ERBEEA (Note 1)
(PEET)

Mr. Lau Sai Chung Beneficial owner - 8,000,000 0.52
i JuisSite EGRAA (Note 1)
(PEET)

148,000 - 0.01
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Approximate
percentage
of the total

Number of number of
underlying shares of
Number of shares held the Company
ordinary pursuant to in issue
share(s) share options YN
Capacity/Nature of held BEBERE ERITRH
Name of Directors interests i BENER By H ML
EZnA B/ REEME LERYH RAHE Bl
Ms. Xia Dan Beneficial owner - 5,000,000 0.33
Xia Danz + ERBEEA (Note 1)
(F3x1)
Interest of 79,500,000 - 521
a controlled corporation (Note 3)
RIEFI AR ER (Ff3E3)
Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael Beneficial owner - 1,000,000 0.07
ERELAE EREEA (Note 1)
(FfEE1)
Mr. Char Shak Ngor Stephen Beneficial owner - 1,000,000 0.07
EBHBRLE ERBEAA (Note 1)
(F3x1)
Ms. Li Jiansheng Beneficial owner - 1,000,000 0.07
FEALT ERBEA [(Note 1)
(Fsx1)
Notes: X

These shares of the Company represent the share options
granted by the Company on 13 July 2017 under the share
option scheme of the Company.

These shares of the Company are held by China Sugar
Holdings Limited which is 100% owned by Mr. Liu
Zhongxiang. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Liu Zhongxiang is
deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held by
China Sugar Holdings Limited.

These shares are held by Mega Edge International Limited
which is 100% owned by Ms. Xia. By virtue of the SFO, Ms.
Xia is deemed to be interested in the ordinary shares of the
Company held by Mega Edge International Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company nor
their associates had any interest or short position in shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations which were recorded in the register
required to be kept under 352 of the SFO or notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

1. FZERRABRODREARAR - E—EFEA+=
BREA D R 3R 2 R -

2. ZERRBIBRMEPEBEXEEERARES M
FEEXEEERARAZEMEEI00%ES R
BREAEMBEES B EPNEEREAEETBEE

% MR A AIFH A D AR 2 i o

Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2017, so far as was known to the
Directors, the following persons (other than the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company) has interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
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Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company NAPE AR FRIEFESFRPEKRD
under the provisions of division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the FI6RIHAEEFECEERTEECMA -
SFO, or which were recorded in the register of substantial
shareholder required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.
Long position in ordinary shares REFERZIFE
Approximate
percentage
of the total
Number of number of
underlying shares of
Number of shares held the Company
ordinary pursuant to in issue
share(s) share options FNN
Capacity/Nature of held BEBRE ERITRHG
Name of substantial shareholders interests fris BENER BEBL
TERRBEE BB B/ RHiHE EERYA RAEE BAk
Mr. Liu Zhongxiang Beneficial owner - 15,000,000 0.98
2L ERHBEA (Note 1)
(PzE1)
Interested in controlled corporation 242,105,262 - 15.88
REH R EMER (Note 1)
ikza)
China Sugar Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 242,105,262 - 15.88
FEREEEER QA EGRAA (Note 1)
(B3E1)
Guangdong Nanyue Bank Person having a security 242,105,262 - 15.88
First Direct Branch* interest in shares (Note 2)
BRAERTRNHERAF BERN C ERER AL (F33E2)
E-EEBYIT
Mr. Zhang Wei Beneficial owner 90,000,000 - 5.90
REFE ERHEEA
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Approximate
percentage
of the total

Number of number of
underlying shares of
Number of shares held the Company
ordinary pursuant to in issue
share(s) share options YN
Capacity/Nature of held BEBERE ERITRH
Name of substantial shareholders interests i BENER ECE ok
FERRES 2B B/ REEME LERYH RAHE Bl
Ms. Xia Dan Beneficial owner - 5,000,000 0.33
Xia Danz + EREEA (Note 3)
k=)
Interested in controlled corporation 79,500,000 - 5.21
RS A RS (Note 3)
(F33E3)
Mega Edge International Limited Beneficial owner 79,500,000 - 5.21
(Note 3) ERBEAA (Note 3)
Mega Edge International Limited i)
(BEE3)
Notes: B 3

242,105,262 shares of the Company are beneficially owned
by China Sugar Holdings Limited, a company wholly owned
by Mr. Liu Zhongxiang, and therefore Mr. Liu Zhongxiang
is deemed to be interested in these shares of the Company
under the SFO. 15,000,000 shares of the Company which are
personally owned by Mr. Liu Zhongxiang represent the share
options granted to him by the Company under the share
option scheme of the Company on 13 July 2017.

China Sugar Holdings Limited has provided a share charge
in respect of the 242,105,262 shares held by it in favour of
Guangdong Nanyue Bank First Direct Branch*.

79,500,000 shares of the Company are beneficially owned by
Mega Edge International Limited, a company wholly owned
by Ms. Xia, and therefore Ms. Xia is deemed to be interested
in these shares of the Company under the SFO. 5,000,000
shares of the Company which are personally owned by
Ms. Xia represent the share options granted to her by the
Company under the share option scheme of the Company on
13 July 2017.

*  For identification purpose only
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Save as disclosed above, the Directors and chief executive
of the Company are not aware that there is any party who,
as at 31 December 2017, had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would be required to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Save for the shareholders as disclosed herein, the Directors
are not aware of any persons, who, as at 31 December
2017, were entitled to exercise or control the exercise of
5% or more of the voting power at the general meeting of
the Company and were also, a practicable matter, able to
direct or influence the management of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by the shareholders
of the Company at the AGM held on 30 November 2009
(the “Share Option Scheme"”). The Share Option Scheme
will remain in force for a period of 10 years commencing
from the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme
from 30 November 2009 (the “Date of Adoption”) (that
is from 30 November 2009 to 29 November 2019). The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant share options to the participants who, in
the sole discretion of the Board, have made or may make
contribution to the Group or any invested entity as well
as to provide incentives and help the Group in retaining
its existing employees and recruiting additional employees
and to provide them with a direct economics interest in
attaining the long term business objectives of the Group.
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The Company may grant to eligible participants (including
any directors, non-executive directors, employees, advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, promoters, service providers of any member of
the Group whom the Board considers, in its sole discretion,
have contributed or will contribute to the Group) options to
subscribe for shares of the Company, subject to a maximum
of 10% of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue as at the adoption date and as at the approval date of
refreshment from time to time, excluding for this purpose
shares issued on the exercise of options. The subscription
price will be determined by the Board and will not be less
than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the Company's
shares, (i) the average of the closing price of the shares
quoted on the main board of the Stock Exchange on the
five trading days immediately preceding the grant date and
(iii) the closing price of the shares on the grant date.

Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee of the Share
Option Scheme shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company as
consideration for the grant. The acceptance of an offer
of the grant of the option must be made within 21 days
from the date of grant. The exercise period of any option
granted under the Share Option Scheme is determined by
the Board upon granting the options but in any event must
not be more than 10 years commencing on the date of
grant. The exercise period of options granted was disclosed
belows.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company shall not, in the absence of shareholders’
approval, in aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate
number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date
of approval of the Share Option Scheme. The Board may
seek approval by the shareholders at general meeting
to refresh the 10% limit. However, the total number of
shares available for issue under exercise of options which
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme in these
circumstances must not exceed 10% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval
of the refreshment of the 10% limit.
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On 27 May 2016, the shareholders of the Company had
approved the refreshment of 10% limit of the grant of
options under the Share Option Scheme. After the grant
of 64,000,000 options on 13 July 2017, the total number
of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 88,447,852 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 5.80% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of this annual report. The
closing price of the shares of the Company immediately
before 13 July 2017, on which the share options were
granted, was HK$0.245 per share.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall
not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue from time to time and the maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to each eligible participant shall not exceed 1% of
the total number of shares of the Company in issue for the
time being in any 12-month period up to and including the
date of offer of the grant.

During the Year, no share option was lapsed, cancelled and
exercised.
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Details of the share options movements during the Year RAFE BREFEE TN 2EREZSFE
under the Share Option Scheme are as follows: mT
Number of share options
BREE
Date of Exercise Balance Granted Balance
grant of Price Exercise Vesting as at during as at
Name or category of grantees share options (HKS) Period Period 1/1/2017 the Year 31/12/2017
RZB-t#§
Rt TEE R=Z-tf TZA=t+-H
HEHARARR BRERH (B¥7) s 5BE -A-BzE&H  REFERY A3

Executive Director and beneficial owner of a substantial shareholder of the
Company

ARRAHTESRIERRZESEAA

Liu Zhongxiang 131712017 0.25 137712017 - N/A - 15,000,000 15,000,000
12712022 TER

2127

Directors

Bz

Liu Feng 13/712017 0.25 137712017 - N/A - 4,000,000 4,000,000
121712022 AEA

2|z

Chen Xian 13/712017 0.25 137712017 - N/A - 10,000,000 10,000,000
121712022 TEA

RE

Lau Sai Chung 13/712017 0.25 137712017 - N/A - 8,000,000 8,000,000
121712022 TER

kil

Xia Dan 13/712017 0.25 137712017 - N/A - 5,000,000 5,000,000
121712022 AEA

Xia Dan

Poon Lai Yin, Michagl 13/712017 0.25 137712017 - N/A - 1,000,000 1,000,000
121712022 TEA

EBE

Char Shak Ngor Stephen 13/712017 0.25 137712017 - N/A - 1,000,000 1,000,000
121712022 TER

EH%

Li Jiansheng 13/712017 0.25 137712017 - N/A - 1,000,000 1,000,000
121712022 AEA

E3c

Other employees

HitfES

In aggregate 13/7/2017 0.25 137712017 - N/A - 19,000,000 19,000,000
121712022 TER

N

[=]AN

Total 64,000,000 64,000,000

mit
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RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE COMPANY'S
SECURITIES

Other than as disclosed under the sections “Share Option
Scheme” and “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
the Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company” above,
at no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executives of
the Company (including their spouses and children under
age of 18) to have any right to subscribe for securities
of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

No Director had interests in a business which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules,
during the Year and up to the date of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
throughout the Year with the Code Provisions of CG
Code, except A.6.7. Details of the Company’s corporate
governance practices are set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report” section of this annual report.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 22 January 2018, Techwayson Trading Limited
(“Techwayson”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the master agreement (the “Master
Agreement”) with China Sugar, a substantial shareholder of
the Company, for purchase of raw cane sugar from China
Sugar Holdings Limited. On 14 February 2018, Techwayson
and China Sugar entered into a supplement agreement
(the “Supplemental Agreement”) to supplement and
amend certain terms of the Master Agreement. The Master
Agreement dated 22 January 2018 as supplemented
and amended by the Supplemental Agreement dated 14
February 2018 (the “Revised Master Agreement”) has been
approved by independent shareholders of the Company at
the Company’s extraordinary general meeting convened on
21 March 2018.

China Sugar is wholly-owned by Mr. Liu Zhongxiang,
the executive Director. Accordingly, China Sugar, Mr. Liu
Zhongxiang and Mr. Liu Feng are the connected persons
to the Company as defined under the Listing Rules and
the transaction under the Revised Master Agreement
constitutes continuing connected transaction on the part of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For the details, please refer to the (i) announcement
dated 22 January 2018 and 14 February 2018; (ii) circular,
notice of extraordinary general meeting and proxy form
dispatched on 6 March 2018 and (iii) poll results of
extraordinary general meeting dated 21 March 2018.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge or its Directors
as at the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing
and supervising the financial reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.
The Audit Committee currently comprises Mr. Poon Lai
Yin Michael (Chairman), Mr. Char Shik Ngor Stephen and
Ms. Li Jiansheng. The Audit Committee has reviewed and
discussed with the management and the external auditor
the financial reporting matters including the annual results
for the Year.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The remuneration package of the Directors were reviewed
and adjusted as follows:

The remuneration package of Mr. Liu Feng, the Chairman
and executive Director, have been adjusted upward to
HK$194,200 per month, with effect from 31 January 2018;

The remuneration package of Mr. Chen Xian, the vice-
chairman and executive Director, have been adjusted
upward to HK$168,400 per month, with effect from 31
January 2018;

The remuneration package of Mr. Lau Sai Chung, the
Chief Executive Officer and executive Director, have been
adjusted upward to HK$151,900 per month, with effect
from 31 January 2018; and

The remuneration package of Mr. Liu Zhongxiang,
the executive Director, have been adjusted upward to
HK$70,000 per month, with effect from 31 January 2018.

Mr. Poon Lai Yin Michael, the independent non-executive
Director, has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 31
January 2018 and the remuneration package remained
unchanged.

Report of Directors
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AUDITOR 3 {01

A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche RAARKBREERFRBAFRG LIRE—BAR
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company will be proposed at R UNEERRYeHATRAEAAMITRAEARF
the forthcoming AGM. Z A% BUAD o
On Behalf of the Board RKxE=Z®g
Liu Feng 28
Chairman FE
Hong Kong, 29 March 2018 BB ZE-NF=A=-+NH
78 SHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED 8 L% BB



Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
TEELHEEERATF

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Uptown Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 89 to 187, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED FE-#HEEERAF
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 —ZF—t55#%

dependent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matter

B AR E

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BREREE MAREREEZEE
Revenue recognised from sale of properties MYEHERI 2 W R

We identified revenue recognised from sale of properties
as a key audit matter as it is significant to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and management judgement is
involved in determining the appropriate point to recognise
sale of properties.
HRARMEHERRA LW EHREBRR 2 EEH LR
HETE MR H & 2 2 B EL IR 5 N E TR E I AP Rt
FHEMR 2 WRBA RERERZEER-

The Group's revenue from sale of properties for the year
ended 31 December 2017 amounted to approximately
RMB547 million, representing 89% of the Group’s total
revenue. As disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements, revenue from sale of properties
is recognised when the development of the relevant
properties have been completed and the properties have
been delivered to the purchasers pursuant to the sale and
purchase agreements.
BE_ZT—+F+_RA=+—HILFE - EEEYEH
&2 REARKES47,000,0007T 1 EEEAEKE 2
89% ° AR A M IS MR M ISP IR E - MEHE 2 W&
REREREEAVEAVECRBEEHRZXTELR
HER -

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognised from
sale of properties included:

BB EEERR I NSRS ZIEFEE:

e Obtaining an understanding and evaluating the
Group's internal control over the process of revenue
recognition of sale of properties; and

o THKILE EBEXEBHEMMEHEERIAWEIET
Z NERE R |

e Assessing whether the criteria for the delivery of
properties have been fulfilled by checking, on a
sample basis, to the terms of the sales and purchase
agreements, the relevant completion certificate for
construction work, the delivery notices sent to the
purchasers.

s HMHMEAEFHEIMENRERTEREESE
BERGR BETREETKEE FTETES
B B AT 38 A X o
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Key audit matter
HRELER

.ﬁdependent Auditor’s Report
B2 AR E

How the matter was addressed in our audit

WARBEZTEEZER

Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a
key audit matter due to significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined
with significant judgements associated with determining
the fair value. As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s
investment properties in People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"), amounted to approximately RMB94 million. Fair
value change on investment properties of RMB44 million
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2017.
HRREMEEREBRBGEEMBERARZEZE N HEE
EARERBEZERHAE RAGREYME 2 HERT
RAREZEFE-R_ZT—tF+A=+—RH &
SERPEARAME ([HE]) ZREMEROARE
94,000,000 HEZE-T—tF+_A=1T—HIFE"
ERGEEERRAERREVEZANEBEGIARE
44,000,0007T, °

As disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, these investment properties are stated at fair
value based on a valuation carried out by an independent
professional property valuer (the “Valuer”). In determining
the fair value of investment properties, the Valuer has
used direct comparison approach by making reference to
comparable sales evidences as available in the relevant
market to reflect current market conditions as of the end
of the reporting period. The key input used in valuing the
investment properties by the Valuer is market observable
transactions of similar properties.

WANARE M MAM T ISHIRE  ZSREMETIRE
B HEYEGER ([HEM])ET2HERAAED
R-NEEREVEZAAER HEMSEAEELR
FEWSERBTS LR A2 P LLEREEER  UREEE
WEHRZIRITHR  HEME IR E W EETHERPIE
AzBARBABBERELUNETISAEERS -
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REWMERZ2EE

Our procedures in relation to valuation of investment
properties included:

BPEBERENEZBEZREFERE:

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer;

FHEBER 2 B ERE e N MEEIE

Obtaining an understanding from the Valuer about
the valuation methodology, the performance of the
property markets, significant assumptions adopted,
critical judgemental areas on key inputs and data
used in the valuation; and

TREERNEERE METSNERER  FE2K
FAERER R EEm ABBRNBIEREZBIEED
RS HIE e 7 K

Assessing the accuracy of information provided by
the management to the Valuer by checking to the
sales prices of comparable properties on a sample
basis.

FRMET A REAE LB EZEE - EiaTh
ERER ML EMRERER 2 ERIE-



Independent Auditor’s Report

Key audit matter

B AR E

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BREREE MARERTEEZEE
Valuation of properties under development and ERVERBELEMEZHE

properties held for sale

We identified the valuation of properties under
development (the “PUD") and properties held for sale (the
"PFS") (collectively referred to as the “Properties”) as a key
audit matter as it is significant to the consolidated financial
statements and significant judgements are involved in the
determination of the net realisable value (the “NRV") of the
Properties.

HREEZYE ([EZYE]) RFELEDE ([FELE
mE]) (BBAIZEME]) 2HEHGEEUBRERZ
BEURREEXEME 2 FIETRE ([FE#RFE])
B8 M B R A BRPEEBR R EZEE-

Our procedures in relation to valuation of properties
under development and properties held for sale
included:

BIBEBERYELFELREDEZEEZRFRE:

e Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer;
o STMAEHERMMZEEN BEHREEM

e Obtaining an understanding from the Valuer about
the valuation methodology, the performance of the
property markets, significant assumptions adopted,
critical judgemental areas on key inputs and data
used in the valuation;

o MHERMTHREEE MEMSRE FKAZ
BARRE HEMRABZ FEZBABZEKRHES
S N B

e Assessing the accuracy of information provided by
the management to the Valuer by comparing details
of existing lease agreement, on a sample basis;

o FBIMEELELBREHEOFE FEEEEN
HEMATRME 2 R 2 R
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B2 AR E

How the matter was addressed in our audit

WARBEZTEEZER

Key audit matter
HRELER

ERMERFELEWEZMEE (&)

Valuation of properties under development and

84

properties held for sale (Continued)

The Group's PUD of approximately RMB744 million and
PFS of approximately RMB395 million are situated in the
PRC as at 31 December 2017 as disclosed in note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements. The management
of the Group determined the NRV of the Properties with
reference to the estimated market prices of the Properties
and valuation performed by the Valuer, which takes into
account a number of factors including the current market
prices of properties of a comparable standard and location.
The management of the Group also needs to estimate
the construction costs to be incurred to complete the
development of the PUD.
RZE—tHE+ZA=+—H BEEHARE
744,000,0007T 2 £ 215 & W% 2 40 A R #5395,000,0007T
ZERKFEREMERALNFE (MRS B Bk i
HIU7FEE) . ESEEERERGTRZERZ(BEFEA
BRELBRERMNEZMEZERITE) R2EZEY
FZ Mt mEMEMET HEEEZSYEZIER
FEHe BEEEETEERNTEMITRERERSEDES
FEHE 2 RPN o
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Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated
future cost to completion of the PUD, on a sample
basis, by comparing it to the actual development
cost, estimated marketing expenses and sales-
related taxes of similar completed properties of the
Group and comparing the adjustments made by the
management to current market data; and

BEK SEERALUCEXNMENERRBEMR
et EHA X RHERETEREEEHER™
SEBELNRABETLE TR EEFED
EOEFTARRAAN SR &

Assessing the management’s estimation of the NRV
of the Properties, on a sample basis, by comparing
the estimated selling prices of the Properties to the
recent market prices achieved in the same project or
by comparable properties, based on our knowledge
of the Group’s business and the PRC real estate
industry.

RmEELE BRH L HZEERREYEEER
MERIE B 3] LB R B TS5 (E AR AR IR AP
Y BREEXEBLFBEEMETENTR FEHE
BREHZEMRAI B FEN G-



Independent Auditor’s Report

Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016 were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified audit opinion on
those statements on 27 March 2017.

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’'s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in @ manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Chan Tsz Wai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

meBEER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZT-REF
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
B EE AR®ET R ARETT
Continuing operations BEREEK
Revenue Wz 5 615,899 479,111
Cost of sales HEMAK (496,338) (394,009)
Gross profit EF 119,561 85,102
Other income Hip A 7 296 1,117
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHER (7,796) (7,027)
Administrative expenses THE R (35,477) (26,988)
Fair value change on investment properties REME L ANEE 15 43,644 -
Fair value change on held-for-trading investments ~ H{EX AR 2R EZ A EE (13) (4)
Finance costs BTRRAR 8 (6,701) (9,720)
Profit before taxation BR B A& A 113,514 42,480
Income tax expense FTiS i X 9 (60,898) (35,246)
Profit for the year from continuing operations FRRBLEEEB RN 52,616 7,234
Discontinued operation BRIEEEER
Profit for the year from discontinued operation FRELIELEEB R 10 - 2,805
Profit for the year FEREF 11 52,616 10,039
Profit for the year attributable to owners ARRZ R ANEIEFARHT
of the Company
— from continuing operations -~ RERBREEK 44,702 3,555
— from discontinued operation -~ REBRIEEEES - 1,057
44,702 4,612
Profit for the year attributable I R EEFENRER
to non-controlling interests
— from continuing operations - REFBELEEK 7,914 3,679
— from discontinued operation - REBRIELCEER - 1,748
7,914 5,427
52,616 10,039
Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) BREAEN (ARES) 14
From continuing and discontinued operations REBBELCEEBRELIEEES 2.93 0.30
From continuing operations REFBLEED 2.93 0.23
Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) BRBERAN (AREES) 14
From continuing and REFELCEEBR
discontinued operations BRI T 2.93 NATE
From continuing operations REBBLEES 2.93 N/ATE A
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e AEXTHMRENEE

5"~ For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—ZT—+&F+—-A=+—HILFE

onsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

2017 2016
—E-t&§ ZT-REF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBTT
Profit for the year F 5 F| 52,616 10,039
Other comprehensive income (expense) HieZEWE (FAX)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: T B EZH P HEEEmIEHE -
Exchange differences arising on translation of Eihee B MmE &
functional currency to presentation currency Z2IEBELEIERERE (7,574) (2,015)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently R a7 HEBm s BHE -
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on translation of R EBINER 2
financial statements of foreign operations WBmREECIELERE 9,844 565
Reclassification of cumulative translation reserve to Rt E fE &R & W E QA 76
profit or loss upon disposal of a subsidiary ENEEER - 557
2,270 (893)
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZEHWRBE 54,886 9,146
Total comprehensive income attributable to: AT 2EREBEE:
Owners of the Company KRR ZHEBA 46,972 3,719
Non-controlling interests FE P2 i1 2 7,914 5,427
54,886 9,146
QQ  SHINAUPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED M .Lii%EHRAT
ANNUAL RE Er &



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 December 2017 A=—ZE—+FE+-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZT—RF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
ME  AR®TrR ARBTET

Non-current Assets FREBEE
Investment properties KEME 15 93,815 -
Property, plant and equipment EN S E L 16 19,030 19,359
Deferred tax assets IR TEE 24 = 3,578
112,845 22,937

Current Assets RBEE
Properties under development TR 17 744,072 354,831
Properties held for sale FIEHEYE 17 394,860 891,580
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b E R FRIE 18 83,328 138,068
Held-for-trading investments RIEXGRBZIRE 27 40
Tax recoverable Al Y B 7418 = 16,099
Restricted bank deposit BRHRITIF R 19 8,015 7,888
Pledged bank deposits EHEIRITFER 20 12,908 34,044
Bank balances and cash RITHEERRS 20 26,322 42,795
1,269,532 1,485,345
Current Liabilities nREEE

Trade and other payables B 5 & H eI 21 564,953 744,739
Consideration payable FERT B = 16,942
Loan payable FEfT B K 22 16,656 -
Amount due to a director JERTEEFHIE 29 2,714 3,160
Tax payable FE B 18 20,919 -
Secured bank borrowings BIEIRITER 23 119,304 133,539
724,546 898,380
Net Current Assets RBEEFE 544,986 586,965
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities HEERRBAES 657,831 609,902

Non-current Liability FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RILTIIE B E 24 63,436 75,874
Net Assets BEERE 594,395 534,028
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- -6h§6‘|idated Statement of Financial Position

RERBMRRR

"~ At 31 December 2017 R=ZE—+E+=-HA=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—XF
NOTE RMB’000 RMB'000
M AR®TRT ARETET
Capital and Reserves EXR®EE
Share capital AR A 25 136,015 136,015
Reserves s 420,344 367,891
Equity attributable to owners RRARZHEAE NEIL#ER
of the Company 556,359 503,906
Non-controlling interests FEPE I AE 2R 38,036 30,122
Total Equity e 4% 594,395 534,028
The consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 187 FEIZIBTEZHEEMBHRER_ZTE—/\F=
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of AZt+hBEEEeHERKENE XHT
Directors on 29 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf NEERKREE:
by:
Mr. Liu Feng Mr. Lau Sai Chung
BlEkE )it Bkt
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BF EE

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED FE-#HEEERAF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HiE—ZF—

Attributable to owners of the Company

meREEER

tE+-A=+—HLEFE

RRRZRBAELES
Share Non-
Share Share  Translation options  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
BRE FEHY
R& B EE RERE e 2itEE NGt i ag
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETr  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2016 RZE-75-A-A 136,015 567,100 (41,383) - (161,545) 500,187 22,176 522,363
Profit for the year EREA - - - - 4612 4612 5427 10,039
Exchange differences arising on AR EBHER
translation of functional currency 2IEREEL
to presentation currency ERER - - (2,015) - - (2,015) - (2,015)
Exchange differences arising on RAESNEEL
translation of financial statements of ~ BIEBRELLZ
foreign operations ERER - - 565 - - 565 - 565
Reclassification of cumulative translation 23t 4 E &R EH B
reserve 1o profit or loss upon disposal of  AFIFEH S EZER
a subsidiary (note 10) (BizE10) - - 557 - - 557 - 557
Total comprehensive (expense) income ~ FRZE (FX ) Wizl
for the year - - (893) - 4612 3,719 5427 9,146
Derecognised upon disposal of HENBARRE LT
a subsidiary (note 10) (BizE10) - - - - - - 2519 2519
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RE
+-f=1-H 136,015 567,100 (42,276) - (156,933) 503,906 30,122 534,028
Profit for the year FREA - - - - 44,702 44,702 1,914 52,616
Exchange differences arising on REMEESRE AR
translation of functional currency EHEREEL
to presentation currency EHESE - - (7,574) - - (7,574) - (7,574)
Exchange differences arising on RAESNERL
translation of financial statements of IR HRELZ
foreign operations ERER - - 9,844 - - 9,844 - 9,844
Total comprehensive income for the year  FRZ2ENEEE - - 2,210 - 44,702 46,972 7,914 54,886
Recognition of share-based AR R
payment expenses BB - - - 5,481 - 5,481 - 5,481
At 31 December 2017 RIE—tF
+-A=+-H 136,015 567,100 (40,006) 5481 (112,231) 556,359 38,036 594,395
-

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED - #EmARAT
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onsolidated Statement of Cash Flows

 mAmeREE

5~ For the year Ended 31 December 2017 HZE—ZT—+&F+—-A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
=B—tF —T—R#F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARS®TR AREBTET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES EIEE
Profit before taxation from ?K BREBCEEBZ
continuing operations BR 5 Al A 113,514 42,480
Profit before taxation from REBKRIEEEER 2
discontinued operation B 150 A1 A = 2,805
113,514 45,285
Adjustments for: JHEIER
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment VBB REREITE 837 803
Fair value change on held-for-trading investments #3552
REZRAREEH 13 4
Fair value change on investment properties WEWMEZ A AES (43,644) -
Finance costs R AW 6,701 9,720
Interest income B A (296) (1,117)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HENB AR ZEE - 763
Share-based payment expenses AR 0 B EREE R R 5,481 -
Operating cash flows before movements LEESEEE 2
in working capital KRERERE 82,606 55,458
Increase in properties under development TR N (384,098) (156,064)
Decrease in properties held for sale FHEHEMER D 446,549 394,009
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables & 5 [z £ fib fE I sk 8 5k 4> (32 71) 52,881 (64,541)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables B 5N EMmENFRIE OFd) 8 (175,531) 39,534
Cash generated from operations KEMSHE 22,407 268,396
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") B EARLME ([FEH])
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") paid EMEN ([REMRER]) (8,083) (8,987)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT") paid B A B g E R
(TLHb3BER]) (24,657) (14,042)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM BEER (FTA)MEBHRESFHE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (10,333) 245,367
Q4  GHINAUPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED 8Ll #B#R A



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

For the year Ended 31 December 2017 &2 =T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tE —T—RE
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETRT AREFTTT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETH
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits M EEFRITER 76,007 342,472
Interest received B HWFE 441 972
Placement of pledged bank deposits FHREHEFREITFER (54,871) (322,060)
Repayment of consideration payable BEENRE (16,942) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME BWEREB (1,718) (130)
Placement of restricted bank deposit A R SR TF 5K (127) (237)
Net cash outflow from disposal of a subsidiary HEMRBARZ
(note 10) Hamb F5 (Mi5E10) - (73)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETEBFIEREFE 2,790 20,944
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BETE
New bank borrowings raised MEE ZRITER 149,498 20,544
New loan raised MEE2EXN 17,342 -
Advance from a director KE—REZFZER = 3,043
Repayment of bank borrowings BERIEITER (163,226) (252,715)
Interest paid ERFLE (12,207) (27,668)
Repayment to a director M—ZEEFEX (446) -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES METBMARSFE (9,039) (256,796)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND RekBReEEYZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS (R A) & hnE (16,582) 9,515
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes fEXSE) s w8 109 256
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RENZRERESESEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 42,795 33,024
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERZEER
AT END OF THE YEAR, ReEEY
represented by bank balances and cash HpaERITEFLRS 26,322 42,795
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~ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

96

e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZF—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

1. GENERAL AND BASIS OF
PREPARATION

China Uptown Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Hong Kong Stock Exchange”). The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information
section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in property development
and investment as well as trading of raw sugar. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA") for the first time in the
current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 - 2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED #E LigSEmARAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure Initiative”

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments require an entity to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. In
addition, the amendments also require disclosures on
changes in financial assets if cash flows from those financial
assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in cash
flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to
be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows;
(i) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of
subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes
in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v)
other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in note 37. Consistent with
the transition provisions of the amendments, the Group
has not disclosed comparative information for the prior
year. Apart from the additional disclosures in note 37, the
application of these amendments has had no impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

2. EAMIREEEEMBREER
(TEBUBHREER]) (&)

REERE LN BB HHEER 26T ()
BEEBETERE7H [ REFEE 2 55T

AEBRARFEEREAZEER - ZFEFTER
ERFREE NEHBHRREAE RN ERER
BFELCAEEY BRASAIFREED -1
S RFER TR ERZEVBEEMBRERE
FPARARKRERERT AREZD RS RE
QAR BERENIEEE -

BEEME ZFEITREERE TIEHE: ()BE
REnBEE: (IARFHREMBATHEM
R EIEMELZZE: (i)INEEXZH &
2 (WAREZE: RWELES-

BRZEEB B N B R A R ) 5 BR #0BY R
37 BZFERZBRMEBRI -8 AEEL
BERBEBEFEZLBER - KK 37N
BEN KAZFEITLEHANEESEE T
BREKTE -
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments'

Leases?

Insurance Contracts?

Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance
Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

98 CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED #E LigSEmARAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures?

As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 - 2016 Cycle!

Transfers of Investment
Property!

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015 — 2017
Cycle?

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

Except as described below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of other new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretations will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of
the Group in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements
for financial assets.

2. EAMIREEEEMBREER
(TEBUBHREER]) (&)

EEME R ERZH 2T REET BB BEHE
ER (&)

ERVBHREELN KREEHEBEQARAAE
FI0RRBEBGT LEICHZEEHER
ERIE28: 2 EF]  EHBS

BB g £ RBERARIRABLEZE
F28F ZIEFT HiRE 252

BB g ER ERBEBWBHREER
E28W 2B ZTE-NMEET-RF

BHRzFEREZ D

BB g £ BREEYE
FA0K 2 EFT

EEMBHREERN FEVYEREEI-_ZT—1
ZIEET FE-_ZT—+FRBZEF

J& B
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZF—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are:

o all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payment of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding, are generally
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income. All other financial assets are measured at
their fair values at subsequent accounting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in
profit or loss; and

o in relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2017, the
directors of the Company anticipate the following potential
impact of initial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement

Debt instruments classified as loan receivables carried at
amortised cost are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding. Accordingly, these financial assets will
continue to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
upon the application of HKFRS 9.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will
continue to be measured on the same bases as are
currently measured under HKAS 39.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)
Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS
9 will result in earlier provision of credit losses which are
not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets
measured at amortised cost and other items that are
subject to the impairment provisions upon the application
of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company,
if the expected credit loss model were to be applied by
the Group, the accumulated amount of impairment loss
to be recognised by Group as at 1 January 2018 would
be increased as compared to the accumulated amount
recognised under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected
credit losses provision on other receivables. Any further
impairment recognised under expected credit loss model
would impact the opening retained earnings and increase
the deferred tax assets as at 1 January 2018.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract(s)

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract(s)

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Continued)

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company have assessed the impact on
application of HKFRS 15 and did not anticipate a material
impact on revenue from the sale of properties and trading
of sugar. However, application of HKFRS 15 may have
impact on the following areas: the Group has considered all
the relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether
the property sales contracts contain significant financing
component, including the difference between the amount
of promised consideration and the cash selling price of the
property; and the combined effect of the expected length
of time between the Group transfers the property to the
customer and the customer pays for the property and the
prevailing interest rates in the relevant market. The Group
has applied the practical expedient in HKFRS 15 and has
not considered the financing component of contracts
which are expected to be completed within one year from
the date of payment made by customers. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company expect that the significant
financing component included in the property sales
contracts would have potential financial impact on opening
accumulated losses, inventory of properties and pre-sale
deposits of the Group at 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modification, amongst others. For the classification of cash
flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold
lands for owned use while other operating lease payments
as operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16,
lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be both
presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZF—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB31,000 as disclosed
in note 30. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the directors of the Company do
not anticipate that a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases will be recognised as
they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently consider refundable rental
deposits received of RMB309,000 as at 31 December 2017
as obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies.
Based on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16,
such deposits are not payments relating to the right to use
the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of
such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost and such
adjustments are considered as additional lease payments.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits received would
be considered as advanced lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may
result in changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above.

Amendments to HKAS 40 “Transfers of Investment
Property”

The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from,
investment property necessitates an assessment of whether
a property meets, or has ceased to meet, the definition
of investment property, supported by observable evidence
that a change in use has occurred. The amendments
further clarify that situations other than the ones listed
in HKAS 40 may evidence a change in use, and that a
change in use is possible for properties under construction.
For example, change in use for transfer from properties
under development in the ordinary course of business to
investment properties could be evidenced by inception of
an operating lease to another party. Currently, the Group
accounts for such transfer only upon commencement of an
operating lease.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 40 “Transfers of Investment
Property” (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these amendments will result in early
recognition of such transfers on the Group's consolidated
financial statements in future periods should there be a
change in use of any of its properties.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and held-for-trading investments, which are measured at
fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment"”, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets".

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would
use the asset in its highest and best use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 H#EZ=F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed
above.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales
related taxes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 H#EZ=F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as
described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have
been completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and
instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting the
above criteria for revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under current
liabilities.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting policy
for leasing below.

e MR MR

—tFt-A=T—HLFE

3. EEEREXE (&)

mEWE (F)
BEWRSREENETE  RRKLEMNE AR
)

mAERNE $’§IR/%@J(ZZDTX}% )z
BERGC EMXE  AIERKE-

Z AR RS & an b $3 55 P B RE B T

\r
/

Uk
IS

|

o HFH‘{
Iy
So

[S2

HEEBERTPHEMEZWATIREMER
PR A FE R HER £ LA B IR A TR IGRME
ERATBI 2 e D BN REHERGFEE MK
MAEERHEET -

Fle g A REBMEL Y2RABEASE
REFEANEERRGE MERAEAT
BEBMBAENERERANEHRRES
M A KB T b B B A ) 2 RE SR 3K A R R B
EOEIES

AEBEHBERECEHE RS
Xﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂiﬁ EID-I_EQ%? it o

EEEE N

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED E-#&E&ERA
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 =2—tHF®8

111



112

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasehold land and buildings

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire property is accounted as
an operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element at initial
recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 H#EZ=F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Properties under development and properties held for
sale

Properties under development and properties held for
sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost includes the cost of land, development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate, borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value determined by the
management based on prevailing market conditions.

Properties under development are transferred to properties
held for sale upon completion.

The Group transfers a property from inventories to
investment properties when there is a change in use
to hold the property to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation rather than for sale in the ordinary course of
business, which is evidenced by the commencement of an
operating lease to another party. Any difference between
the fair value of the property at the date of transfer and its
previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties, including
those held for sale, are measured at fair value using the
fair value model. All of the Group's property interests held
under operating leases to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation purposes are classified and accounted for as
investment properties and are measured using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss
for the period in which they arise.
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7 For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

In the event that lease incentives, including rent-free
periods, are given to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as deferred rent receivables. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental income on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. In the event that lease incentives are
received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives
is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised and included in
finance costs in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“"MPF Scheme”) and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as expenses or capitalised in
contracts in progress, where appropriate, when employees
have rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of
the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees others
providing similar services are measured at fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, for share options with
non-market performance vesting conditions, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that are
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of
the original estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share options reserve.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED #E LigSEmARAR
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 —Z2—t&£5#H

btés‘-"'to the Consolidated Financial Statements

W%~ For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-—ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. EEEREE(#E)

UESEEURDBERNINRS

NPREBURBZEMBE CUEDZEE N
RO BERONRDBEBRATARKREBEHRZ

NRERTE-

NESGEEARDRERNONR 2 ARETIR
ROEBEHREAEEHYSEEFBEIRATE
ZIEFTEE (LB RAMEETSEBIRST)
REBHREERETHE s (BRERKE)
el il

RBEHR REBAETERARBRGZE
EMS AEEREHMABBEIETSREB
FF A HETEBAREB 2Bt BRERK
B-SBHAETRAGIZZE (WA) IR
BaAERAATRARI RGBT I
HRREREFELEERE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation”
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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7 For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ—F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxes for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 H#EZ=F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
Dollar while the consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB") for consistent presentation
as prior years.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise, except for exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for
which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s
interests.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve.
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7 For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL") and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FV/TPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss.

3. EEEREE(#E)

MBTA(E)
MBEE (&)
BAREFAA BRI EEE

WA BEEDRERS MM BEEED RS
WA EFFABRR-

WHBEEBTIER ASEARIERS:

BAZEFZEMNAROHEE 8

AR 2 — @EﬁEZM%IE
i vm$ﬁl & B A —

N 2%
2_
?ﬁZLHH%%'J@Di,\ RIE R K

e—EATETRE YIFEETAMBERZ
BT Ao

BAREFABRZHMBEEEB AR AT
ROENMEEEAZEMEEERAINER
HER o

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED E-#&E&ERA
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 =2—tFFR

121



"~ For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE—=

SRETBERRME

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
restricted bank deposit, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

Obijective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 H#EZ=F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
debtors could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the respective credit periods
and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on debtors.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
consideration payable, loan payable, amount due to a
director and secured bank borrowings) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

° the amount of obligation under the contract,
as determined in accordance with HKAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets"”; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 H#EZ=F

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

e MR MR

—tFt-A=T—HLFE

3. EEEREE(#E)

RIETER

EREEREREZANENEME  HH
BEENEMARZBRE Y AR LD HEZE
T —ERR AEETERILERZSTHH
BEE-MASEYREINRREMEE B
KRR REK THEBIENECEZEE
AIAEBEREAEAXNZSERAENREE

LB ARENRE %*°ﬁ$$l% FIT 88 3%
MBEEMBENBARE D E R LE R /K

EIA%mﬁ£WF§F&%EWHZ%ﬁﬁ
R AEMEER -

RBEILERVHEER ZHEEREELED
%&EWKF REAM 2 KPR LR
SR RFHNEABEEMENEZRENED QMR

o

EHEEASENETERR EEHKER
B ASETERIEERVHRE WK LHE

RO BRENERAEEESNEENREME
MERRBREANER -

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED E-#&E&RA
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 =2—tHF®H

127



2

128

e M ERRMTE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating unit, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised as income immediately in profit or loss.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations, that the directors have been in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that has the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z=—-F

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the directors have reviewed the
Group's investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group's investment properties are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s
deferred taxation on investment properties, the directors
have determined that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale. For the properties on which
the ‘sale’ presumption is not rebutted, the Group has
further recognised deferred taxes on changes in fair value
of investment properties in relation to the PRC LAT, which is
the additional tax to be charged if a property in the PRC is
recovered through sale.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuations performed by an independent professional
property valuer.

In determining the fair value of investment properties
situated in the PRC, the valuer has used direct comparison
method which involves estimates of the fair value to similar
properties adjusts to reflect current market conditions as of
the end of the reporting period.

In relying on those valuation reports, the directors have
exercised their judgements and are satisfied that the
methods of valuations are reflective of the current market
conditions. Note 15 provides detailed information about
the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions
used in the determination of the fair value of investment
properties.

PRC LAT

The Group is subject to the LAT in the PRC. The provision
of the LAT is based on the management’s best estimates
according to the understanding of the requirements set
forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The
actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by
the tax authorities upon the completion of the property
development projects. The Group has not finalised its
LAT calculation with the tax authorities for its property
development projects. The final outcome could be different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the income tax expense and the
related income tax provisions in the period in which such
tax is finalised with local tax authorities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z=—-F

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Estimated net realisable value of properties under
development

In determining whether allowances should be made to the
Group's properties under development, the directors of
the Company make reference to the valuation performed
by an independent professional property valuer and take
into consideration the current market environment and the
estimated market value prices (i.e. the estimated selling
price less estimated costs to sell) less estimated costs
to completion of the properties. An allowance is made
if the estimated market value is less than the carrying
amount. If the actual net realisable value of properties
under development is less than expected as a result of a
change in market condition and/or significant variation
in the budgeted development cost, material provision
for impairment losses may result. At 31 December 2017,
the carrying amount of properties under development
was RMB744,072,000 (2016: RMB354,831,000). No
impairment has been provided for both years.

Estimated net realisable value of properties held for
sale

The management of the Group determines the net
realisable value of properties held for sale by using
prevailing market data such as most recent sales
transactions and internal estimates of cost based on quotes
from contractors. These estimates require judgement as
to the anticipated sale prices by reference to the valuation
performed by an independent professional property
valuer and recent sales transactions in nearby locations,
rate of new property sales, marketing costs (including
price discounts required to stimulate sales), the legal and
regulatory framework and general market conditions. If the
actual net realisable value of properties held for sale are less
than expected as a result of changes in market conditions,
material provision for impairment losses may result. At
31 December 2017, the carrying amount of properties
held for sale was approximately RMB394,860,000 (2016:
RMB891,580,000). No impairment has been provided for
both years.
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5. REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year from
continuing operations is as follows:

Wy ==

AEBFAREFELEXEB 2 WaE D10

2017 2016

—E—tF ZZT—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARETTT

Sales of properties MEEE 546,659 479,111
Sales of raw sugar JRHESHE 68,558 -
Rental income HE A 682 -
615,899 479,111

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on
internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker
(i.e. the executive directors of the Company) (the “CODM")
in order to allocate resources to the segments and to assess
their performance.

The Group's operating segments under HKFRS 8
"Operating Segments” are identified as the follows:

o Property development and investment: this segment
primarily develops and sells office premises,
commercial and residential properties. This segment
also generates rental income from investment
properties and achieves gain from the appreciation
in the properties’ values in the long term. All the
Group's activities in this segment are carried out in
the PRC.

o Trading of raw sugar: this segment trades raw sugar
on a worldwide basis.

Property development and investment and trading of raw
sugar also represent the Group's reportable segments. The
segment information reported in this note does not include
any amounts for the discontinued operation, which is
described in more detail in note 10.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZF—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEWER(E&)

(@) Segment revenues and results (a) HRZRELS

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and REERBELCEEB 2 REREREZDITRK
results from continuing operations by operating and ERA/EDEH2HMT

reportable segment.

Continuing operations BEREELR
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tHE+=-A=+—HLEE
Property
development Trading of
and investment raw sugar Total
NEBRRKRE FRES @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AR®TR AR¥TR
Revenue Yz 547,341 68,558 615,899
Segment profit 2 EEF 132,739 2,274 135,013
Bank interest income BITFSHWA 296
Fair value change on held-for-trading RERDRABZREZ
investments AREES (13)
Finance costs BEHCR (458)
Unallocated corporate expenses v Val WNSIEE T (21,324)
Profit before taxation BR Bt AL A 113,514
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE_ZT-—RF+A=+—BLFE
Property
development Trading of
and investment raw sugar Total
MEERRRE FREES @t
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETTT AREFTT ARETTT
Revenue Yogs 479,111 - 479,111
Segment profit (loss) 2EERF (FE) 57,804 (485) 57,319
Bank interest income HATHBHA 1,117
Fair value change on held-for-trading BERGRBEZREZ
investments AREES (4)
Finance costs BB (342)
Unallocated corporate expenses vl NG (15,610)
Profit before taxation B A 42,480
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 H#EZ=F

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment profit/loss represents the profit/loss of
each segment without allocation of bank interest income,
fair value change on held-for-trading investments, certain
finance costs and unallocated corporate expenses (i.e.
central administration costs and directors’ emoluments).
This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment.

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

e TR R MR

—tFt-A=T—HLFE

6. ZEER(F)
() DHURBRXE(E)
REDMz BT RREAWNEIMAA K E &5

BERMBR 2 WEF,EBEESDHRDEIE
TRERA BFEXZABRIKREZRANEE
B ATUHBEKRARRSERARBAS (BIF R
THRERALESEMES)MEEZHF, BE-
R E T EELERRERANERD B M
BT R

(b) SWEEREE
AEBEERBBEZONMERE

MEENHZ

liabilities by reportable and operating segment: s -
Continuing operations BHEREEY
2017 2016
—E2—tF ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT ARBETT
Segment assets DEBEE
— Property development and investment —MEERRKE 1,339,710 1,425,988
— Trading of raw sugar —RIEE 5 2 -
Unallocated corporate assets ROMEEEE
— Deferred tax assets —REHBEE - 3,578
— Held-for-trading investments —BEXZREZRE 27 40
— Tax recoverable — 7] Yz [B1 7 18 - 16,099
— Bank balances and cash —RITEFNIRE 26,322 42,795
— Others —E A 16,316 19,782
Consolidated total assets REBEEBE 1,382,377 1,508,282
Segment liabilities SEPEE
— Property development and investment —WEERLKE (636,861) (807,104)
— Trading of raw sugar —FEES (33,559) (56,395)
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOBEEEAER
— Consideration payable —ENRE — (16,942)
— Loan payable —ENER (16,656) -
— Amount due to a director —ENEEFHIE (2,714) (3,160)
— Tax payable —FET R IE (20,919) -
— Secured bank borrowings *ﬁ?fﬁ#ﬁ RITER (12,304) (13,539)
— Deferred tax liabilities EXEBIEEE (63,436) (75,874)
— Others —EAh (1,533) (1,240)
Consolidated total liabilities rEBEBERez (787,982) (974,254)
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" For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZ—-F

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than deferred tax assets, held-for-trading
investments, tax recoverable, bank balances and

cash and certain other assets; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than consideration payable, loan payable,
amount due to a director, tax payable, secured bank
borrowings, deferred tax liabilities and certain other

liabilities.

(c) Other segment information

—tF+-A=1T—HLEFE

6. ZEER(F)
(b) SBEEREE(F)

REESBzZEANSBRBNH
Hy -

D e BERE B

. RECHBAEE BIEXZHEZIRE
AREFRE - RTEFRREUANET

HEEN MMEEEADEERZD
#B K
. BREMRE BNER BNEEX

PRI - B HEAPRITER %EL%RIE\E\
BRETHMEEIN FERABEHGDE

W AR LN\ 3z
EREDE -

(0 EHitbaHEHR

Continuing operations HEKEXK
2017 —E—
Property
development Trading of raw
and investment sugar  Unallocated  Consolidated
NEBERRE RRES AR &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR¥Tn  AR%TR  AR¥Tn
Amounts included in the measure of TN Em S "?ﬂﬁéﬂ%
segment profit or loss or segment assets: Bt AZFE
Additions to non-current assets (Note) AEFTEH ﬁ? ( BitzE) 1,718 - = 1,718
Fair value change on investment properties &M% ARELD 43,644 - - 43,644
Finance costs BB 4,504 2,004 193 6,701
Depreciation of property, nE BERSERE
plant and equipment 394 - 443 837
Amounts regularly provided to FHRFEEEREEIES
the CODM but not included in the measure BT A5 €7 B0 2
of segment profit or loss or segment assets:  # B EERFE :
Fair value change on held-for trading RERFREZIREZ
investments RAEZH - - 13 13
Bank interest income SRATH B YA = = (296) (296)
Income tax expense FERAX 60,898 - - 60,898
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(c) Other segment information (Continued)

6. AN (EF)
(© HitbpBEH (4)

2016 —ET—RF
Property
development Trading of
and investment raw sugar Unallocated  Consolidated
NEZRRRRE FRES AAE =i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETRT  ARETR  ARETR
Amounts included in the measure of STESHER S HEER
segment profit or loss or segment assets: B AZFE
Additions to non-current assets (Note) ANEXRDEE (M) 130 - - 130
Finance costs BIBRAR 9,020 358 342 9,720
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% « BiE % &1 & 364 - 439 803
Amounts reqularly provided to THRTZEEREEEM
the CODM but not incluced in the measure BTt A E# %8
of segment profit or loss or segment assets: 7 EEERFE :
Fair value change on held-for trading BERSRBREL
investments INREE L) - - 4 4
Bank interest income FITFI B M - - 1,117) a,117)
Income tax expense FTEHAS 35,246 - - 35,246

Note: Non-current assets included investment properties and

property, plant and equipment.

Wi SPRBEEQERANEARNE BE R
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“ For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—-T—+F+_F=+—HItFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEWER(E&)
(d) Geographical information (d) HEER
For the year ended 31 December 2017, 100% (2016: (2= —+tF+-_A=+—HILEFE BR
100%) of the Group's revenue and assets were derived REE100% (ZZE—R"F:100%)KEEFP K
from customers and operations based in the PRC including EEZWHREEAUNTE (BEEE) (A
Hong Kong (by country of domicile) and accordingly, no EER) #HIEE-—SPHEBAEBR 2R S
further analysis of the Group's geographical information is HER D
disclosed.
(e) Information about major customers e) ETEEFESR
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years REEFEREUAEERIEEERIERI0%
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are WEFPZW=RMT :
as follows:
2017 2016
—E-tF —ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTET
Customer A (Note) A (M) 68,558 -
Note: It is revenue generated from trading of raw sugar to this Mizt: HEDEZRFPETRREZELEZKEAZTRR
customer and this customer did not contribute any revenue of HE-ZT-—RE+T_A=1T—HLEFETELALRSE
the Group in the year ended 31 December 2016. B & B i 2 o
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HAlA
2017 2016
—E-tF —ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTET
Bank interest income RITFIB A 296 1,117
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. Bt 7 R AR
2017 2016
—E—+tFE —ZT—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTTT
Interest expenses on MEFX:
— bank borrowings —RITIER 10,106 28,104
— bank overdraft —R1TEX - 1
— receipts in advance —TEYRIE 1,738 358
Total borrowing costs FERT=E NN 11,844 28,463
Less: Amount capitalised in properties B ERMENERN 2
under development (5,143) (18,743)
6,701 9,720
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FrEfHpEX
2017 2016
—E—+tFE —ZT—RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFTTT
Continuing operations BELSEEK
Current tax BN ERF% 1R
PRC EIT R EEFTEH 37,148 19,567
PRC LAT A £ b g A R 32,610 20,342
69,758 39,909
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETR
PRC EIT R T - 1
Deferred taxation (note 24) RAEFRTE (KI5E24)
Current year KEE (8.860) (4,664)
60,898 35,246
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years. No provision
for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group's
assessable profit for the current year was wholly absorbed
by tax losses brought forward.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulations of the EIT Law, the tax rate of
the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. LAT has been provided at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land
value, with certain allowable exemptions and deductions.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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9. FBHRAX (&)

KM EFEZEENGHR IR R R A
Z16.5%TH AR AKERAFEZ BRD
N B B A 2 A E IR 8 - M0 AT IR
FENGSHEE-

REGFECEMGHRE(IEEMERE] R
CEAEVABERGSH KMEHEA - E
MR A E B R H25% °

THIEERBRESRABTENBERLER
PRal 2 MEEHL e - THIBEHRE 3t L 1E
BEEER30%E60%H)IE & T & ¢F B 6 (
wmETAANRELRE)

RETFBECEMGHE B -_TENF—H—
B BB 2 A A B A BREUZ & T B R
ZBREBHAMEHNR -RAMBERRL RS E
MEBARZRENSI Bz ERERELEL
MG MAREEERNEG RO EREHE
ZEE MEREZEAETSN ALK RE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 H#EZ=F

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

—tFt-A=T—HLFE

9. FBHRAX (&)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit REANZHIERX BESERKRPHBRTA
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or MzHEERIOT :
loss as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTET
Profit before taxation (from continuing B 54 B v A
operations) (CREFECEER) 113,514 42,480
Tax calculated at applicable tax rates (Note) REBHEGTE 2 A (H3) 30,000 13,924
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for PRI 2 B E
tax purpose 6,836 11,350
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose IERMBA 2 BB E (1) (2)
Underprovision in respect of prior years MAEFERETR - 1
Provision of PRC LAT for the year FE R B 4 I8 (E T RS 32,610 20,342
Tax effect of PRC LAT deductible for PRC EIT A B AP B 1 AT S B R
PETIER MG E (8,153) (5,086)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised BAATRERHIEEE (423) (8,489)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMEBB I MGETE - 70
Others Hit 29 3,136
Income tax expense (relating to continuing FTSBR X
operations) (HEBFEEEERER) 60,898 35,246
Note: The weighted average applicable tax rate is 26.4% (2016: Mizk: MEFHBEAMEAR264% (ZFT— X F:

32.8%)

32.8%)
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142

10. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
(DISCONTINUED OPERATION)

Disposal of trading of electronic products operation

On 31 December 2015, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to (i) dispose of its 51% equity interest
in Fame Electronics Limited (“Fame”), which carried out all
of the Group's trading of electronic products operation,
and (i) assign its non-interest bearing shareholder’s loan
to an independent third party, at a total consideration
of HK$100,000 (equivalent to RMB84,000). The disposal
was completed and control over Fame was passed to the
acquirer on 30 March 2016.

The profit for the year from discontinued operation is set
out below:

10. HE-BEHNBEAR (ESRILEEXR
%)

HEEFTERESXR

RZE—RFE+_A=+—8B KA&EEIE
Efpa o UWIRAKREAEK100,000T (HERA
R¥E84,000)AIBYE=ZH)HEREELS
FEBRAT ([RE])51% R AL AREH
2HEFEMBEZIER  RNEFEETFER
BEZ R -_ZE—XNF=F=+tH HLe£HE
EXRKAEREZEHBEBRIEZWES -

KECRIEREXRB ZFRENHINWT

From

1 January 2016

to

30 March 2016

—E-RF

—A-B=

—E-RF

—A=+H

RMB'000

AREFTT

Profit of trading of electronic products operation BEFEmMESEB 2 5m 3,568

Loss on disposal of trading of HEBEFEMEFIEB2EE

electronic products operation (763)
2,805
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

10. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 10. HE—RBNBAR (SRIEKEEK)
(DISCONTINUED OPERATION) (#&)
(Continued)
Disposal of trading of electronic products operation HEETEREZ XK (&)
(Continued)
The results of the trading of electronic products operation HRNEFEMBESIEB2EEBNT :
for the period were as follows:
From
1 January 2016
to
30 March 2016
B-ZT—RF
—A—8%
—E-RF
—A=+H
RMB'000
ARETF T
Revenue W &5 _
Other income E MU A 3,569
Administrative expenses THER (1
Profit before taxation BR 54 Al 2 A 3,568
Income tax expense P H 5 52 -
Profit for the period B A5 7 3,568
Profit for the year from discontinued operation has been FRABRIEREEBR 2 HNEHR (GTA)
arrived at after charging (crediting):
From
1 January 2016
to
30 March 2016
B-ZT—RF
—HA—RB=z
—E-RF
—A=+8
RMB'000
AREF T
Auditor's remuneration ZERT BN & -
Reversal of impairment loss recognised FEWRRMB AR KIEEERZ
in respect of amount due from a fellow subsidiary DEREN SEisEEl (3,569)
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‘ 10. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
(DISCONTINUED OPERATION)
(Continued)

Disposal of trading of electronic products operation
(Continued)

During the period from 1 January 2016 to 30 March
2016, the trading of electronic products operation spent
RMB859,000 in the Group's operating activities and
contributed RMB301,000 to the Group's financing cash
flows.

Upon the completion, the Company ceased to hold any
interest in Fame. The net liabilities of Fame at the date of
disposal were as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5"~ For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-—ZT—+&F+—-A=+—HILFE

10. (EE)—F‘E?WE’D\E (BERILEERKE)

HEEFERES XY (£)

R-ZE—RF—A—BE-_Z—XF=ZA=+
B EFEMESIEBRNAEE &4
BT HARESS 000 M AEBEZMER
eREEBIAR®E301,0007T °

Rt AEETEREREREMER
HREERB 2 FAENT :

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control XEBHRZEEREESH
was lost
As at
30 March 2016
RZT—RF
—A=+8
RMB'000
ARBTT
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H e WK IE 477
Bank balances and cash RITHETFREAES 157
634
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H M E IR (2,646)
Amounts due to the Group excluding Fame JER AR (RERIN) BB (3,930)
(6,576)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEZFAE (5,942)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

10. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

(DISCONTINUED OPERATION)

(Continued)

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary

10. HE-RBNEAR (ERILEEER)

(#%&)

HE-BEHMBLARZER

RMB'000

ARBTT

Cash consideration ReRE 84

Net liabilities disposed of BHEZFAE 5,942

Shareholder’s loan assigned EEZERRER (3,713)

Non-controlling interests FEVE M R (2,519
Cumulative exchange difference in respect of HEEFN > HEEER 2 —HNERF

the net liabilities of a subsidiary reclassified FREZRITELER

from equity to profit or loss (557)

Loss on disposal of Fame HEREZEIE (763)
Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiary HEMBARZRES R FE

RMB'000

ARBTT

Cash consideration received BWIRSRE 84

Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B REZRITEFNIRS (157)

(73)
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11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year from continuing operations has been

W5~ For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-—ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

11. FREF

btés‘-"'to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEFBREEBZFRNENENBRAUATH

arrived at after charging: 8
Continuing operations BERSEEL
2017 2016
—E—+tFE ZZT—KF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR%®TT
Directors’ remuneration (note 12a) EEHEM (FisE12a) 11,041 7,851
Other staff costs Hi 8 T AR 7,803 7,768
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIREF T EI R 646 635
Share-based payment expense for other staffs HME TURND RERE
SR 1,627 -
21,117 16,254
Auditor’s remuneration = E A& 1,110 1,164
Cost of properties held for sale recognised as R AR N FEL S MEKR
expenses (included in cost of sales) (GFAHERA) 432,483 394,009
Net foreign exchange loss b 5 BT 1RF 5 794 21
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M WEREZEBITE 837 803
Operating lease rentals in respect of equipment  RBZELHEH S 28 28
Operating lease rentals in respect of MEMFEZKEHERS
rental premises - 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 12. EE - FETHAEREESEMNE
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments () EERFETHAEMS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight EMKERANG(ZE—RF:HEEKREE
(2016: eight) directors and the chief executive were as TBRABSN 2T :
follows:
Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
HirEz BUkHTES
Mr.POON  Mr. CHAR
Mr.CHEN  Mr. LAU M.  MrlU Ms.  LaiYin, Shik Ngor, M. LI
Xian  SaiChung  LIUFeng Zhongxiang  XIA Dan Michael ~ Stephen  Jiansheng Total

REXE YER%E  YB%E YBAXLE XaDazt EEEXE THAKE TR4RE &t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARET:R

For the year ended 31 December 2017  EZ=F-t#

ToA=T-ALEE

Directors' fees EZhs - - - - - 156 156 156 468
Salaries and allowances FEREN 1,608 1,451 1,855 668 618 - - - 6,200
Discretionary bonus BB 67 61 i 28 26 - - - 259

1,675 1512 1,932 696 644 156 156 156 6,927
Retirement benefits scheme contributions iR K252l tt3 52 52 52 52 52 - - - 260
Share-based payment expense IR BEBH T AR 856 685 383 1,284 428 86 86 86 3,854
Total it 2,583 2,249 2327 2,032 1,124 242 22 2142 11,041
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12.

(a)

DIRECTORS'’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 12.
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a)
(Continued)
Executive directors
Hi1E%
Mr CHEN — Mr LAU Mr.
Xian  Sai Chung LIU Feng

REAT SthEs
RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETE

6t—és‘5'to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRAE

%" For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE -—T—+F+-_A=+—HIFE

R /= = =

EE FETHRAEREEMSE
(%)
EERFIETBRAEME (&)

Independent non-executive directors

BUFHTES

Mr.POON  Mr. CHAR

Mr. LU Ms. LaiYin,  Shik Ngor, MLl
Zhongxiang  XIADan Michael Stephen Jiansheng Total

BEnt H8A%E XaDnmkt REERE BHARE TRARE it

RMB'000

RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB'000

ARETT ARBTT ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARBTR ARETR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z=F-~F

tZA=1-BLEE

Directors’ fees L0k - - - - - 154 154 154 462

Salaries and allowance GeREl 1,719 1,551 1983 714 661 - - - 6,628

Discretionary bonus B 132 119 153 55 51 - . = 510

1,851 1,670 2,136 769 2 154 154 154 7,600

Retirement henefits scheme contributions R ARAEFI5H &I 3t 51 51 51 47 51 - - - 251

Total emoluments Mo 1,902 1,721 2,187 816 763 154 154 154 7,851

Notes: B o -

@) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for @ iYFﬁf%ﬂ?f%%ZM@ﬁﬁi?&%%$@ﬁTEfil‘%
their services in connection with the management of the BZEHEERBEM EXARBELFNTES
affairs of the Company and the Group. The independent non- ZHEREFETARREST ZREAR -
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services as directors of the Company.

(ii) The discretionary bonus is determined with reference to (ii) E,Zﬁ@'l%?ﬁ%j[)}@%%ﬁg:%—:{:E&:;ﬁ—,‘*\i
the prevailing market conditions, corporate and individual ToAST-AFEFRZATHR  ERREA
responsibility and performance during the years ended 31 AERRBMETE -

December 2017 and 2016.
(iii) Mr. Lau Sai Chung is also the chief executive of the Company (iii) Bt REENMBARBITRAAE  JA LT EE 2 BY

and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the chief executive.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments paid by the Group during
the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

12. EE - FETHAEREEMSE
(&)

BEEME

12. DIRECTORS'’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (b)

AEELERSMe@INALH O (ZF
—ARNFEWNB)RARBZEETRETBITHA
B REZHME R EXINE N —R (ZF
—RNF-B)EMALTZMEMT

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2016: four) were directors and the chief
executive of the Company whose emoluments are set out
above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2016: one)
individual were as follows:

2017 2016

—E—+tFE —T—RF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARETRT ARETT

Salaries and allowances e MoEBh 873 861
Discretionary bonus BB 4L 73 -
Share-based payment expense R BERH IR 514 -
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRAE FFT S R 52 51
1,512 912

Emoluments of the five individuals with highest
emoluments including directors were within the following

bands:

FIATHER :

TEEEMEENAL(BRES)ZHMEN

Number of individuals
(including directors)
BI¥EH (BREES)

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —FE—R

=

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately = Z=##1,000,0007T

RMB867,000 (2016: RMB856,000)

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB867,001 to RMB1,301,000
(2016: RMB856,001 to RMB1,284,000))

(18R & AR®867,0007T
(ZE—RF:
AR #856,0007T) )
711,000,001 7T &
7B#1,500,0007T (#8E HA 4
AER#867,001 T E AR
1,301,000 (=& — /R F -
AR#856,001 TTE AR
1,284,0007T) )

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED E-#&E&RA

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 =2—tFF3#

149



~ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

. ARE MR RMEE
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 12. EE - FETHAEREESEMNE
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (%)

(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued) (b) EEMS (&)

Number of individuals
(including directors)
BETIHEH (BFES)

2017 2016
—E—tF —TAF

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 (equivalent to 7 #1,500,0017C & /5 1
approximately RMB1,301,000 to RMB1,735,000 2,000,000t ( fHE 4
(2016: RMB1,284,001 to RMB1,712,000)) AR #1,301,000C 2
AR #1,735,0007C
(ZZE—RF: AR
1,284,0017L 2 AREE
1,712,0007T) ) 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 (equivalent to 7 %2,000,0017C &
approximately RMB1,735,001 to RMB2,169,000 /& #2,500,0007T (18 & R4
(2016: RMB1,712,001 to RMB2,140,000)) AR #1,735,001 02
AR #2,169,0007T
(ZZT—R%F:
AR#1,712,001 7L E
AR #2,140,0007T) ) 1 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 (equivalent to  7&#2,500,0017C 2
approximately RMB2,169,001 to RMB2,602,000  7#%:3,000,0007T (8% M4
(2016: RMB2,140,001 to RMB2,568,000)) AR 2,169,001 E
AFR#2,602,0007T ( ZZF—7~
F: AR¥2,140,001 7T E
AER#2,568,0007T) ) 3 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

No emolument have been paid by the Group to the
directors and the chief executive of the Company or
the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office during the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016.

DIVIDEND

No dividends were declared and proposed by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016,
nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the
reporting period (2016: nil).

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

12. EE - FETHAEREEMS
()

(¢) H=2_ZFET—+tFRER_ZFE—X~"E+=A4
—+t—BUtEFE AEEHERLKRF
BEENTETRAEREE RS S E
AALTZEEERRS A INAR
SRR RSN IEAHEBRMEE-

13. RE

REE-_ZE—+tER -_ZT—RFE+_/F=+—
BIEFE AARBMETKEREZ I HEMK

B VTEREHRBNEZZINTARE
TE—RNFE) e

14. ERER
REGEREEBRORIEREXK

ARRHEEAREERERAREFERNDRE
P S S &

2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—XF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TT
Earnings 27
Earnings attributable to owners of the A EERERABANME 2
Company for the purpose of calculation of RNRARER AEGEEAT
basic earnings per share 44,702 4,612
Earnings attributable to owners of the A EERBEERAME 2
Company for the purpose of calculation of RRATEE AR N/A
diluted earnings per share 44,702 i A
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

From continuing and discontinued operations

lotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14. BRERN (&)

REFEKEEBRRCRIERERY (£)

(Continued)
2017 2016
—E-tF ZZT—RF
‘000 ‘000
TR T A%
Number of shares ROEE
Weighted average number of T AR N
ordinary shares for the purpose of (REREABMNTME)
basic earnings per share 1,524,478 1,524,478
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares in MARITEERBREY k2
respect of outstanding share options BUEEETRR ZE - NATEH
Weighted average number of AR N 8
ordinary shares for the purpose of (MEREERNMS)
diluted earnings per share 1,524,478 N/A 3

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2017 does not assume the exercise of
the Company’s share options because the exercise price of
those options was higher than the average market price for
shares during the period from the grant date of those share
options to 31 December 2017.

No diluted earnings per share was presented for the year
ended 31 December 2016 as there was no potential
ordinary share outstanding during that year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and dilutive earnings per share
from continuing operations attributable to the owners of
the Company is based on the following data:

14. BRER (£&)

ARBBEEAREREFELEET 2BRE
AREERFTIREATBURFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARBTT
Earnings 27
Earnings for the year attributable to the RAEEE AEIEF AR
owners of the Company 44,702 4,612
Less: profit for the year from discontinued B EERIEREEBZ
operation F R& = (1,057)
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings HARRHEE AEIEEA
per share for the year attributable BREXRBMNME 2 &7
to owners of the Company 44,702 3,555
Earnings for the year attributable to owners RRBIHEE AEIEF AR
of the Company 44,702 N/AA 3
Less: profit for the year from discontinued W BRI TS 2 F N A
operation - N/ATiE A
Earnings for the purpose of diluted earnings A ERRREE ARGEFEA
per share for the year attributable to BREERMNME 22
owners of the Company 44,702 N/A 3 A

The denominators used are the same as those detailed

above for basic earnings per share from continuing and BREKIEKSE

discontinued operations.

=REIDE

IRz BE EXFHRGFERERHELER
EB 2 BRERR N FTER
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE=Z

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

From discontinued operation

Basic earnings per share from discontinued operation for
the year ended 31 December 2016 was RMBO0.07 cents
per share, calculated based on the profit for the year
from discontinued operation of RMB1,057,000 and the
denominator detailed above for basic earnings per share
from continuing and discontinued operations.

—tF+-A=1T—HLEFE

14. BRERN (&)
REOKRIEEEER

BHE-_Z— X "F+-_A=+—BILEEXAD
RICEEB2ERELABANAEERARE
0,079 ENRKREBERIKEER ZFREF
AR®1,057,000c & EXFrEFt AR EFE R
BRBECEEBRERIIKEEBE2EREAR
BNz ESH-

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWE
2017
—E
RMB'000
ARBTT
FAIR VALUE ARE
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and RZZB-—RF—HA—HB ZZ—RF
1 January 2017 +ZA=+—RAKkK=ZET—+F—HA—H -
Transfer from properties held for sale HREFEHEME 50,171
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss A IEZEER 2 A EE N 43,644
At 31 December 2017 R-_E—+FE+_HA=+—H 93,815

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties
of RMB93,815,000 as at 31 December 2017 have
been arrived at on a basis of valuation carried out by
Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited, an independent
professional property valuer not connected with the Group.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages
third party qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The
management works closely with the qualified external
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model. Management reports the valuation
report and findings to directors semi-yearly to explain the
cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED #E LigSEmARAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The independent property valuer adopted direct
comparison approach by making reference to comparable
sales evidences as available in the relevant market to reflect
current market conditions as of the end of the reporting
period to arrive the valuation of investment properties.
There has been no change to the valuation technique
during the year.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties,
the highest and best use of the investment properties is
their current use.

The key inputs used in valuing the investment properties
by the independent property valuer under the aforesaid
approach was market observable transactions of similar
properties. A slight increase in the market observable
transactions used would result in a significant increase in
fair value measurement of the investment properties, and
vice versa.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and
information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31
December 2017 are as follows:

15. BEWE (&)

BYYMELEMRAERLBOEL2ZHE™
BEARZALBHEERRE URREEHRSE
HRZROTMANERREMX 2B - HE
RN FRNLEES -

REFREVEZAANER REVEZERS
EEREREREERAE-

BYWEGEMBREAR T EEREYRET
HERERZARBABBESBRUNEZTS
ABRXZ -FMA™ME A BERSEMIE K
BEYREVEZAABAERBIEZN RZTF

AEERENEFZABRBER T —1tF
TZA=1t—HZAREFHZEHET:

Fair value
as at

31 December
2017

i
—E—tF
+=A
=+—HzZ
ARE
RMB’000
AR®EF T

Level 3
E=H/
RMB’000
AR Tt

Retail shops in the PRC NG e

=y 93,815

93,815

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the
year.

FA BEBEASIELE=HR-

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED E-#&E&RA
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 =2—tF§R

155



156

“ For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+-_A=+—HIFE

't-és-‘-"“to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRAE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ BEKZHE
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Motor
buildings improvements  Equipment Furniture vehicles Total
HETHEK
EF HEEE B B "E ag
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AR%FTr  ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
cosT A
At 1 January 2016 RZ2-~FE-HA—H 20,407 894 1,408 166 1,293 24,168
Exchange realignment SRR 1,085 47 14 9 - 1,155
Additions NE - - 130 - - 130
Disposals HE - - (24) - - (24)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—"E+ZA=+-H 21,49 941 1528 175 1,293 25,429
Exchange realignment =tk (1,415) (62) (100) (12) - (1,589)
Additions NE - - 20 - 1,698 1,718
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+&+-A=1-H 20,077 879 1,448 163 2,991 25,558
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZHE
At 1 January 2016 W_E-x"E-f—H 3,344 894 485 166 135 5,024
Exchange realignment 5 198 4 13 9 - 267
Provided for the year ERNEE 434 - 231 - 138 803
Eliminated on disposals it Bl 3 - - (24) - - (24)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—r"F+-ZA=1—8 3,976 941 705 175 273 6,070
Exchange realignment RS (260) (62) (45) (12) - (379)
Provided for the year FRERE 439 - 230 - 168 837
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=1+-H 4,155 879 890 163 441 6,528
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+E+-A=+—H 15,922 - 558 - 2,550 19,030
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"E+ZA=1—8 17,516 - 823 - 1,020 19,359
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ANNUAL REPORT 2017 —2—t£5#H



16.

Notes:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment
are depreciated on a straight-line basis, after taking
into account their estimated residual values, at the
following useful lives or rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the term of
the lease or 50 years

Over the shorter of the term of
the leases or 5 years

18% to 25%

18% t0 25%

10%

Leasehold land and
buildings
Leasehold improvements

Equipment
Furniture
Motor vehicles

The leasehold land and buildings are situated in
Hong Kong.

Leasehold land and buildings with an aggregate
carrying value of RMB15,922,000 (2016:
RMB17,516,000) have been pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group.

16. MEX BERRE (£)

B

(a) NE®ME BEMREREE LT RE
A REREERRATAIERAFHKIF

RL\BAEBEITE

MELTHREF REZHN50F
(AREHEB%E)

EEE B E 5 F
(AREHB%E)

Bgi] 18% £25%

R1Aa 18% £25%

RE 10%

(by HELHEBFHUREE-

(0 HELHEEFZBAEEHEARK
15,922,000 (ZZFE—RF: AR
17,516,000 ) EERAE TASEE — K&
RITEEZHEM -
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" For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ—F

17. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
AND PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Properties under development are classified as current
assets as the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to be completed in
the normal operating cycle. At 31 December 2017,
properties under development with a carrying value of
RMB774,072,000 (2016: RMB354,831,000) were not
scheduled for completion within twelve months from the
end of the current year.

Properties under development with a carrying value of
RMB554,997,000 (2016: RMB189,075,000) have been
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group.

Properties held for sale are situated on leasehold land in the
PRC. All the properties held for sale are stated at cost.

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

“'otes“to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—tF+-A=1T—HLEFE

17. ERYERFSFLHENSE

HREBETEADESREEZCERHENESR
KERPNER AN EEVERE D AR
EE-N-_ZE—+F+-A=+—HB EEE
BAREETI7I4,072,0000L (T —RF: AR
#354,831,000/L ) M EEMERT IR AF
EHFRE+_@ARTT-

BEEEAARMS54,997,0007T ( —Z & — <
F: AR®189,075,0000) 2ERMECIEA
BYAEBR—RIBETEEZEMT-

FIFLEMENDURFTEZEE L -FTBE R
TEHE R AR B -

18. BEFRHMEWFIE

2017 2016

—E—tF ZZEZ—KRF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTET

Trade receivables =) A& - 3,289
Less: impairment loss recognised B B RERBIEEE - (3,289)
Deposits and other receivables Ee REMEWRKIE 17,378 27,810
Less: impairment loss recognised B B ERIRERERE (407) (437)
16,971 27,373

Prepayments TERT IR 65,142 76,859
Other tax recoverable H b A U [E1 757 18 1,215 33,836
66,357 110,695

83,328 138,068
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

19. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSIT

The restricted bank deposit represents a guarantee deposit
for the construction of project required to be placed in a
designated bank account by the PRC Construction Bureau
of Maoming City. The amount will be released upon the
completion of the respective construction project.

Restricted bank deposit carries interest at a market rate of
2.25% (2016: 2.25%) per annum.

20. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Pledged bank deposits amounting to RMB12,908,000
(2016: RMB34,044,000) have been pledged to guarantee
the mortgage loans granted to the banks to the customers
of the Group and are therefore classified as current assets.

The pledged bank deposits carry interest at a market rate of
0.30% (2016: 0.30%) per annum.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which ranged
from 0.01% to 0.385% (2016: 0.01% to 0.35%) per
annum.

19. BRHBJITER

ERFIBTEREAFATREZTRERBE
ERTEFPAARIEBRERZRER %2 &
BREBERER T ITRHER-

ERGBBTTERIEZMIBFEFNE2.25% (ZF
—NF:2.25% )8

20, EEFRTERRBOTEERRE

ABEAR12,908,000t (ZE—XRF: AR
#34,044,0000) 2 E|FRITFHRE (EIK
B UERBIMASERPREEHZEBE
K ARDERRBEE-

EERFHERTEREMBEFFNNE030% (ZF
—RNFE:0.30% )8

RITHETFERTHSFFNE0.01%%20.385% (=
T—RXF:0.01%%20.35% )t & -

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED E-#&E&RA
ANNUAL REPORT 2017 =2—tF§R

159



For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE=Z

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

—tF+-A=1T—HLFE

2. ESRHEMEMSNRKIE

2017 2016
=E-tF —ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTET
Trade payables B 5N RIA 36,641 39,111
Accrued expenditure on construction JEETIRERY 51,827 29,938
Other payables and accrued charges HtENRIBERETER 31,023 12,203
Deposits and receipts in advance REMERE 2ike RTBKKIA
from pre-sale of properties 412,983 607,092
Receipts in advance from sales of raw sugar KB RWEIHE 2 TBUERIE 32,479 56,395
564,953 744,739
Credit periods granted to the Group by suppliers range HERGE TAEEOEIORZEER-
from 0 to 90 days.
The following is an aging analysis of trade payables, RBRERRCBEIRENREBEREZEHHZES 2
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the BREC DT
reporting period:
2017 2016
—E—+tFE —ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR%¥TET
Within 90 days 90K LA 36,502 38,378
91 - 365 days 91E365K 139 330
Over 365 days BE365K - 403
36,641 39,111
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s receipts in advance NRoE—+E+-A=+—F KEEGEE
from the sale of raw sugar carry interest at a rate of 5.3% e T FE LS &5 3% IN=18 A tiETRE %
plus 3-month London Interbank Offered Rate (2016: 5.3% e (—Z%— :5.3% 0 =18 A fm BB 1T R

plus 3-month London Interbank Offered Rate) per annum.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HILFE

22. LOAN PAYABLE 22. EHER
As at 31 December 2017, loan from an independent third RZE—+F+-_A=+—H ER—RE
party is unsecured, interest-bearing at 6% per annum and = EZE/TM%QHEE W RENEK6%TERA
repayable on 30 April 2018. E/‘ T-NFOA=+HEZ-
23. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS 23. BHEABJITER
2017 2016
—EBE—+tE ZZZTKF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BFTR AR®BTT
Secured bank loans: EEBBITER:
— Fixed-rate borrowings —BEEMEER 107,000 120,000
— Variable-rate borrowings —FEFEER 12,304 13,539
119,304 133,539
Carrying amount repayable within one year* JER—FAEEZREE 8,327 128,059
Carrying amount of bank loans HAEBERERERBERE
that contain a repayable on demand clause /,\H/‘LA—I— AHEEEZ
(show under amount liabilities) but repayable: FITERZEREE
(R //|b@:é1 PENN VNI
— within one year ——F R 7,997 1,204
— within a period of more than one year but not ~——F & 1818 18 /N 4 HAfE
exceeding two years 51,025 1,072
— within a period of more than two years but not — N 4 £ {8 B 38 F1 F B
exceeding five years 51,955 3,204
Amount shown under current liabilities RNARBBEEE T ~TE 119,304 133,539
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set * ZERRIEIRBE R EME T EER
out in the loan agreements. &
The ranges of effective interest rates (which approximate to AEEBRZERMNE (ERASHFMERMEE)
contracted interest rates) on the Group's borrowing are as EEMT
follows:
2017 2016
—E-tF —T—RF
Effective interest rate: ERM=E:
— Fixed-rate borrowings lmf‘J?fﬁ%\ 10.5% 9.00%
— Variable-rate borrowings —FEFIEMEFK 2.78% — 3.02% —

4.00% 3.97%
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o =

24. DEFERRED TAXATION 24. ERE B IE
2017 2016
—E-t& —TAF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARETT
Deferred tax assets ERETIAE E - 3,578
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIBERE (63,436) (75,874)
(63,436) (72,296)
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets RAHEBEREHBE CBRNEEZRERLEN
recognised and movements thereof during the current and H(AB)EERAEZEHNOT
prior reporting periods:
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
Impairment properties
loss under
recognised in ~ development Change in
land  Accelerated respect and fair value of
appreciation  depreciation of trade properties  investment
tax provision allowance  receivables  held for sale properties Tax losses Total
E5EN  HEEYMER
TiEER MEZERR KEHENE  RENEZ
BE MEHRERE HEBRE ZOAERE  DAEED REGR @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARETR ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2016 RZE—"E-A—H - 5 513 (83,675) - 5,9% (77,161)
Exchange differences EXER - - 27 - - 174 201
Credit (Charge) to profit or loss RERFTA (305) 3578 Q) - 4,223 - (3,136) 4,664
At 31 December 2016 RIE—R%F
+ZA=1+—-H 3578 4 540 (79,452) - 3,034 (72,296)
Transfer of investment properties BREHENFERERENE
from properties held for sale - - - 8,085 (8,085) - -
(Charge) credit to profit or loss A& (B EHA 2,529 @ (540) 24,787 (9,820) (3,034) 8,860
At 31 December 2017 RIZ—t%
+=A=t+-8 1,049 - - (46,580) (17,905) - (63,436)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

24. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At 31 December 2017, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately RMB34,050,000 (2016: RMB34,847,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of such losses as at
31 December 2017 (2016: deferred tax asset had been
recognised in respect of RMB18,390,000). A deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of RMB34,050,000
(2016: RMB16,457,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. Losses of both years may be carried
forward indefinitely.

24, EIEBIIE (&)

R-ZEBE—+FE+_A=+—B KA£EBAX
BRAMIEEENARE34,050,000 (=F
—NF: AR®34,847,0007T) 7] B 1E K £
KK GEH - R—_FE—+F+_A=+—H 1
ERZEFERRELHBEE (T — X
F:P2 g ARM18,390,000 T 2 IR IE 18
BE) ARARBFRREZAAEMNE B
T AR®34,050,000c (= —RF: AR
16,457,000 ) ERELEHBEE - MBFE
ZEEAERALE -

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. IR
Equivalent to
Number of HER
shares HK$'000 RMB'000
R & BETT AREFTT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FRIEE0.10T 2 LA
Authorised: JETE
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and RZE—XRFE—HA—8-
31 December 2017 —E-RFE+ZA=+—H
FZE—+F+
—A=+—H 3,000,000,000 300,000 281,070
lssued and fully paid: BOIREHZE:
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016and ~ AT — R F—HA—H-
31 December 2017 —E-RFF+-A=T—HK
—T—+%+=-A=+—H 1,524,478,520 152,448 136,015
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company on
30 November 2009 (the “Scheme”).

The Company may grant to eligible participants (including
any directors, non-executive directors, employees, advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, promoters, service providers of any member of
the Group whom the board of directors consider, in its
sole discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the
Group) options to subscribe for shares in the Company,
subject to a maximum of 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the adoption date and as at the
approval date of refreshment from time to time, excluding
for this purpose shares issued on the exercise of options.
The subscription price will be determined by the Company’s
board of directors and will not be less than the highest of (i)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares, (ii) the average
of the closing price of the shares quoted on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange on the five trading days immediately
preceding the grant date and (iii) the closing price of the
shares on the grant date.

On 13 July 2017, the Company granted a total of
64,000,000 share options to subscribe for 64,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company to certain
eligible individuals.

As at 31 December 2017, the number of share granted and
remained outstanding under the Scheme was 64,000,000.
No share option has been granted or exercised and no
option remained outstanding under the Scheme as at 31
December 2016.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 26. HERRAESTE (&)
Movements of the Company's share options held by FRA EFNEEFAZIARABREZZD

m

directors and employees during the year are as follows:

Number of share options

BREHE

Outstanding at

Outstanding at

1January Granted during 31 December Exercise price
Category of participant Date of grant 2016 and 2017 the year 2017 Exercise period per share
R-Z-RERK
ZB-tF R-B-—+F
—RA-H T=A=1-H
SEEER R BH e KT RERRH WARTE TR BRITHEE
HKS
BT
Directors 13 July 2017 - 45,000,000 45,000,000 13 July 2017 to 12 July 0.25
2022
% —B—+F “Z—t&5tA+=H
tA+=H E-Z-F4R
+—H
Employees 13 July 2017 - 19,000,000 19,000,000 13 July 2017 to 12 July 0.25
2022
€& —B—+F “Z2—t&5tA+=H
tA+=H F-E-_E+ R
+—H
- 64,000,000 64,000,000
Weighted average exercise price (HK$) N/A 0.25 0.25
EFHTEE (B%T) @R
Note:  All the above share options are exercisable on the grant date. BMIFE: BAEPRABARIES A AR KL B AT -
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The fair values of the share options at the grant date, were
calculated using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The
inputs into the model were as follows:

Grant date 13 July 2017
Number of share options 64,000,000
Share price HK$0.249
Risk-free rate 1.194%
Expected volatility 45.34%
Time-to-maturity 12 July 2022

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over one year
and reference to the companies in the similar industry.
The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management best estimate, for the effect of
non-transfer ability, exercise restrictions and behavioral
considerations.

The fair value of the share options granted amounted to
HK$6,318,000 (equivalent to RMB5,481,000) in aggregate.
The Group recognised a total expense of the same amount
during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil) in
relation to the share options granted by the Company.
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26. B ERTE (&)

BREXNKLBABH I ARBENER ZHEABE
EERAUGE B ZHABELT

g ==t —Z—+t+tF+tA+=H
EREEE 64,000,0001p
f& (& B #0.2497T
i 3| g Al & 1.194%
T8 BB R @ 45.34%

EI HA B R —E-F+A+=H
FEHERERDEAAQRRIBRER —F2EL KR
WEREBRUTEZRARZELKIBETE - %18
AFERZERTFHERBEEREZRER
oA EEE - TERAIERITRAEERE
R BIELARE-

EREEREZ ARES X AEEE,318,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

27. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
Hong Kong

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the "MPF Scheme"”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its Hong Kong
employees. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF Scheme, each of the subsidiaries (the
“employer”) in Hong Kong and its employees makes
monthly mandatory contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employee’s earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Legislation. The mandatory contributions
from each of the employer and employees are subject to
a cap of HK$1,500 per month. During the year ended
31 December 2017, a total contribution of RMB572,000
(2016: RMB477,000) was made by the Group in respect of
this scheme.

The PRC, other than Hong Kong

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute to a state-
managed retirement plan for all its employees at a
certain percentage of the basic salaries of its employees.
The state-managed retirement plan is responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to all retired
employees. Under the state-managed retirement plan, the
Group has no further obligations for the actual pension
payments or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
a total contribution of approximately RMB334,000 (2016:
RMB409,000) was made by the Group is respect of this
scheme.

27. EKRBEFIFHE
&8

AEBEZHEERERELHBRERFELES
FEET B ENBRFELNELTE ([BES
frEl]) cmEeFEBRATHARE BB
URAAER - BERBESFE SFEHNEB
rEal (B ) RERESRARHZEHEE 2
5% WA (EERBHERESEM ) B R
SR - BEREE 2B EERAET A
1,500 BR HE_ZT—+tF+_-_/F=+—
BIEFE AEBERUFAEIEFEBEETIAR
572,000 (ZE—R~F: ARM477,000
JL) °

HE - BREEI

BEFBENGHEERBTE PRKBLARA
MAFMBREREMKXE 2B KENKEF S EL
HE-HEFBAEEEAFENETES L -
BEXRRARBAFEEAERMBRKES AT
ERRe HEEBERENKREFNFTFE 2T K
SEREFHFINTEHHBEREARE I H
FRREBERIAMELEME—PERE-BHE-T
—+tF+_A=+—BIEFE KNEB G
SEH AN ARE334,000T (ZF— X
F: AR%409,0007T) °
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28. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, certain assets of the
Group were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—ZF—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

28. EHREE

RBERAR AEEZETEECHERRTA
SERTEEZERNT

2017 2016

—EBE—t+E —ZET—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARBETT

Leasehold land and buildings HELHRETF 15,922 17,516
Properties under development Y 554,997 189,075
570,919 206,591

29. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016 are as follows:

29. BEIHEE

HE -+ _ZT—XRFE+-_A=+—H
tFEE BERHEMIBERERKE 2M 2 W0
—|T:

Compensation of key management personnel TEEEERE Z2F M
2017 2016
—B—tE —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTET
Salaries and other benefits in kind FekHMEYMN G 7.873 8,461
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRTE G I LK 312 302
Share-based payment expense AR BERE A 4,368 -
12,553 8,763

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

Related party balance

Amount due to a director is denominated in RMB,
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &2 -F—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

30. COMMITMENTS

Commitments under operating leases
The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
RMB682,000 (2016: Nil). The properties held had
committed leases mainly running for the one to three years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum
lease payments.

30. &iE

REHERE

AEBELHEA
RERNBRRZYWERS KA ASARE682,000
T(ZE—RNF: &) FIEMEZHBEEN
F—Z=4%F-

RBERR AEEEEBFFIA T RESK
EHEMNK-

2017 2016

—E-tF —ZZFT—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Within one year —FR 1,851 -
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEZELF (BREEEMFE) 4,434 -
6,285 -

The Group as lessee

The Group leases certain of its premises and equipment
under operating leases arrangements. Leases are
negotiated for a term ranging from one to five (2016:
one to five) years and rentals are fixed. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals and terms of renewal were
established in the leases.

FEBIEBFEA
AREREEEEERFEALETNERR
BeAMMBERNT - FERF (ZF—A
F—FERE)MALEEE - BERERSE
SARE  HEABA R T AE L
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FE M ERRMTE

30. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which are payable as
follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5~ For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-—ZT—+&F+-—A=+—HILFE

30. EE(E)
EEEEBEBEA (B)

RBERR AEEENZAATEBELERE

THRKREEEENHAENT :

2017 2016

—E—tF ZZT—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AR%TTT

Within one year —FR 12 11
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEZEFRLF (BEEEMFE) 19 27
31 38

Other commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the

H i

RBEBRR AEEBEEYMEZERAEN

following capital commitments for properties under Ik
development:
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—KRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR%¥TE
Contracted for but not provided EHEEEE R 249,161 427,727
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31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s maximum obligation
in respect of the mortgage facilities provided to certain
purchasers of the Group’s properties amounted to
RMB443,460,000 (2016: RMB535,979,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group provided
guarantees in respect of the mortgage facilities granted
by certain banks to certain purchasers of the Group's
properties. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees,
upon default on mortgage payments by these purchasers,
the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding
mortgage principals together with the accrued interest and
penalties owned by the defaulted purchasers to the banks.

Under the above arrangement, the related properties were
pledged to the banks as securities on the mortgage loans.
Upon default on mortgage payments by these purchasers,
the banks are entitled to take over the legal titles and can
realise the pledged properties through open auction. The
Group is obliged to repay the banks for the shortfall if the
proceeds from the auction of the properties cannot cover
the outstanding mortgage principals together with the
accrued interest and penalties.

The Group’s guarantee period starts from the dates of
grant of the relevant mortgage loans, and ends upon
the earlier of (i) the issuance of real estate ownership
certificates to purchasers, which will generally be available
within one to two years after the purchasers take
possession of the relevant properties; and (ii) the settlement
of mortgage loans between the mortgage banks and the
purchasers.

In determining whether financial liabilities should be
recognised in respect of the Group's financial guarantee
contracts, the directors of the Company exercise judgement
in the evaluation of the probability of resources outflow
that will be required and the assessment of whether
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The directors of the Company considered that
the effect is insignificant, and accordingly, no provision
for guarantee has been recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

31. HAREE

R-TE—+FE+-_A=+—B AEBE®AE
EMECs A TERERBZEBERZESE
EAEARBA43,460,000T (ZFE—NF: A
K #535,979,0007) °

RBEYR AEBEHRETRTAAEEY X
ZETERROZRBERRHER -REE
RIGF HZFERKREEBERBKIE AKX
SEAEERENERRNRITZAEREKS
N2 R &R A B M AR o

REBEALLZH BFREANEEHELSRBERZE
RERTRIT - MEAEFERALEERER
B BSRITERBYCZAERE L AEBAH
HEZREMYE -WYEREMSHIAEZL
MERERZEEASEREHE RER
AR EARRITEEEZR -

AEBEzEFRBERLEBRBERAHH
MOEATEETREREA/L: (VWEKE
HEMEMBER  —BRREXEFHEBYE
B-—EMFRNEL: RNEBRBRITEER
ZEMRIBER -

REERERAKRE Y BEREGNHERY B
BER AAREFHELHE UEFAFTEE
Rtz ATgE e R G AR ESRIEL A
S -ARRESRR/TELTEXN Btk
MEAENGEVBHRRERERERB -
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32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2017
and 2016 are as follows:

Place of
establishment/ Issued and fully
incorporation/  Class of paid capital/
Name of subsidiary operation shares held registered capital
R/
ZMRL/ BRTRARRAE/
WEAREE BRI BERGER HMER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5~ For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE-—ZT—+&F+-—A=+—HILFE

32. ARABREEMBMARZFHE

R+ Rk -_FE—R"F+-_HA=+—82
FTEMBARFMER DT :

Proportion ownership interest

held by the Company Principal activities
RARMEERRERRLLA TERK
2017 2016
ZE-tF “E-RF

Directly  Indirectly Directly Indirectly
E# mE E#% ik

Techwayson Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$10,000
EUERERBRAR EE Eak 710,007

Techwayson Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$10,000

BERZHERATA BE ERER 7 110,0007
Maoming Huada Real Estate The PRC Contributed RMB50,000,000
Development Limited* s capital AR 50,000,000
(“Maoming Huada") YNV
KETERFHEREER
Ral ([KamER])
* The English name is for identification purpose only.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding as at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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100% - 100% - Provision of management
services

REERRS

100% - 100% - Trading of raw sugar
RIEES

- 90% - 90% Development of real estate
in the PRC
RPEEERE

* ESEE LR Gl

FREJNARAEETAR/IBFEANKTERAN
BEZASENBAR -ARREZRRIIHMEA
MEBAREMESRBBBNITRK
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32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 3. ARATREEMBLARZFHE(£E)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other RBEPRR ARFBEHAEEMETITEEER
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A majority ZHMWBRAR -ZEMBRARZEHNEE K
of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong and the PRC. FRKgE - ZEMWBLAA T EZEBH AW
The principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised K
as follows:
Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
FEXEWK FTEEEME MEXRHE
2017 2016
—E-tF —ZT—RF
Investment holding Hong Kong 2 2
KREZR o
Investment holding The British Virgin Islands 1 1
REZEK REBRZES
Investment holding The PRC 4 4
BB R oh
7 7
Inactive Hong Kong 2 2
ST BB
Inactive The British Virgin Islands 1 1
EER RERLES
Inactive Cambodia 1 1
S ESCES
Inactive The PRC 3 2
ST ey
7 6
14 13
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33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 33. Gtz
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned TRINTBEREZEFIMEEZAEEIERE
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling MEBARIZFMER
interests:
Proportion of ownership
interests and voting
Place of incorporation and rights held by non- Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiary principal place of business controlling interests ~ non- controlling interests controlling interest
FENMERAERAE IRTHEHEERZ
HEARER BPANES-ES. 5 BERFAELS wA (B]) EHE L
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tF ZZRF ZEBE-tFf Z2F ZE-tf TR
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT AR®TR ARETT
Fame Hong Kong and the PRC - 49% - 1,748 - -
% EERTE
Maoming Huada The PRC 10% 10% 7914 3,679 38,036 30,122
ELIEIN hE
7914 5427 38,036 30,122
* 49% interests in fame has been disposed of during the year * HE-ZT—R"F+-A=+t—HLFEELERE

ended 31 December 2016, details are set out in note 10.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's

ZA9%HE s FEIBEBAMIFE10 ¢

BEARFEH UG 2ASENBEAR ZHK

subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests as set ERBEHNMT -
out below.
2017 2016
—E—tF —ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBETT
Maoming Huada RAEWEKR
Current assets MENEE 1,265,085 1,425,371
Non-current assets IERBNEE 96,956 1,827
Current liabilities mEEE (918,245)  (1,050,104)
Non-current liabilities EmBBE (63,436) (75,874)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZAY/NSIE PNy 3 342,324 271,098
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests YA A S PR R 38,036 30,122
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33. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

e MR R MR

—tFt-A=T—HLFE

33. FIEGIMEE (F)

(Continued)
2017 2016
—E-tF ZZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTET
Revenue Weas 547,341 479,111
Profit and total comprehensive income FABMNREEER =R
for the year 79,140 36,790
Profit and total comprehensive income RRARHEB ARMEFERNR R
for the year attributable to owners of FHEHHERE
the Company 71,226 33,111
Profit and total comprehensive income SRV ) 1 R 2 B AR A s | J2
for the year attributable to 2 H W= REE
non-controlling interests 7,914 3,679
Profit and total comprehensive income FABNREEK=REE
for the year 79,140 36,790
2017 2016
—B—tE —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Net cash (outflow) inflow from operating activities #& % /E 1158 &
(md)mAFEE (31,735) 279,361
Net cash inflow from investing activities KEFBMFHESRANFRE 19,582 600
Net cash outflow from financing activities RMEEBERe R FR (5,648) (267,343)
Net cash (outflow) inflow B OR)RAFERE (17,801) 12,618
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY

btés‘-"'to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R B IS R MR

W5~ For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-—ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

34. AQTFMBRREK

2017 2016
—E—-+tF —E—RF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREF T
Non-current assets IREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHBE AR ZRE 1,009,623 476,035
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H th jE W FRIR 205 232
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NI = 583,041
Bank balances and cash RITEGF RS 900 9
1,105 583,282
Current liabilities HREEE
Other payables H th F& 1~ 5RIE 1,102 793
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE < BT BB~ &) 5 1B 756,025 813,721
Amounts due to directors BN EEFHIE 2,714 -
Consideration payable JET B - 16,942
Loan payable FEfTE K 16,656 -
776,497 831,456
Net current liabilities nEEEFRE (775,392) (248,174)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREEE 234,231 227,861
Capital and reserves BEXR#EE
Ordinary share capital TR AR AR 136,015 136,015
Reserves ] 98,216 91,846
Total equity MR 234,231 227,861
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

The movement in reserves are as follows:

34. ADTFMBRREK (&)

HEEBIOT

Share
Share  Contributed option  Translation ~Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
BRipEE BARE  BRERSE EifE 2HER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  AREFR  ARETT ARBTT ARETRT ARETR
(Note)
GBS

At 1 January 2016 WZE-~5-A—-H 567,100 67,614 - (5,579) (519,252) 109,883
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (5,410) (5,410)

Exchange difference arising on translation to BERZFERMELEL
presentation currency ERER - - - (12,627) - (12,627)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FREERTLE - - - (12,627) (5,410) (18,037)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~E+ZA=1-H 567,100 67,614 - (18,2006) (524,662) 91,846
Loss for the year FREE - - - - (16,946) (16,946)

Exchange difference arising on translation to AERZFERMEEL
presentation currency EHESR - - - 17,835 - 17,835
Total comprehensive income (expenses) for the year FR2EYNRE (FR) 8% - - - 17,835 (16,946) 889
Recognition of share-based payment expenses BB D AERMN TR - - 5,481 - - 5,481
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=1—H 567,100 67,614 5,481 (371) (541,608) 98,216

Note: Pt AT

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company and the net asset value of subsidiaries acquired through an
exchange of shares pursuant to the group reorganisation in 2001.

RRARBARBERARRDHETEER 2 EEERER -

TE—FEEEHZBRN T

WEZERe

=]
1=

MEBRARZEERE

-
4 -
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35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
include consideration payable, loan payable, amount due
to a director and secured bank borrowings, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associate with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

CHINA UPTOWN GROUP COMPANY LIMITED #E LigSEmARAR
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

36. MHITA
(a) BHBIEEH

2017 2016
—E-tF ZZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR%TT

Financial assets MgEE
FVTPL — held for trading BARBERFABR—BEXS 27 40

Loans and receivables (including cash and ER R EWIE

cash equivalents) (BREEeRBEEFEY) 64,206 112,010
64,233 112,050

Financial liabilities P S =Ri
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEKAGTECVBAR 175,676 193,127

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, held-for-trading investments, restricted
bank deposit, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, trade and other payables, consideration payable,
loan payable, amount due to a director and secured
bank borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
the Group’s financial instruments include market risk
(interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

(b) HHBEBEEBFERBE

AREZEBHBTAGEES R MEKK
B REXSREZRE ARMRGTER D
ERETER ROAERRS E3RE K
BARE BRAE BRER EN—2EF
WERAEABTER - METAZHEERE
EENERE- AWAREN B TAZARE
ETBER (FEER) EERRERDES
A AR ZE RS HERIMT &
BEGEERSER R BRENARE
38 2 483 o
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ARE R R MR

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to restricted bank deposit, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, receipts in advance from sales of
raw sugar and secured bank borrowings. Interest rate risk
is managed by the management on an ongoing basis with
the primary objective of limiting the extent to which net
interest expense could be affected by adverse movements
in interest rates. Interest rate risk on bank deposits is
considered immaterial and therefore has been excluded
from the sensitivity analysis below.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for receipts in advance
from sales of raw sugar and secured bank borrowings at
the end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at the end
of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 50 basis points (2016: 50 basis points) increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the effect from possible
change in interest rates. Restricted bank deposit, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances and cash are excluded
from sensitivity analysis as the directors of the Company
consider that the exposure of cash flow interest rate risk
arising from variable-rate bank balances is insignificant.

If the interest rates had been 50 basis points (2016:
50 basis points) higher or lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group profit for the year would
decrease/increase by HK$197,000 (2016: HK$292,000).
This is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure to
interest rates on its floating rate of receipts in advance from
sales of raw sugar secured bank loans.
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36. B IR (&)
(b) HERBEEEERBE (£)
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

At 31 December 2017, other than the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position which best
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk,
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group arising from the amount
of contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantees
provided by the Group is disclosed in note 31.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In this regard, the directors consider
that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

With respect to credit risk arising from other receivables,
the Group's exposure to credit risk arising from default
of the counterparties is limited as the counterparties have
good history of repayment and the Group does not expect
to incur a significant loss arising from other receivables.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit-
ratings, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

Liquidity risk analysis

The following table details the Group’s contractual maturity
for their non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B E—

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity risk analysis (Continued)
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rates, the
undiscounted amount is derived from the interest rate at

the end of the reporting period.

fa.*rA BF %5 R 2R P =

—tFt-A=T—HLFE

36. B IR (&)
(b) HERBEBEEERKE (£)

mBEZmEE (F)

ﬂ/bﬁ@j,éﬁ f}ﬁ (/25)

SEESES

Carrying
Weighted On demand or Total amount at
average lessthan 3 months to 1 year to undiscounted 31 December
interest rate 3 months 1 year 2years  2tob5years cash flows 2017
R=B-t&
REXF KURRE t-B=t-H
mETHRE  SRZER ZERE-F  -FEMF WEFEIF -t L ZIRE{E
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 B % & &
Trade and other payables B RAEMEMNTE N/ATEA 37,002 - - - 37,002 37,002
Amount due to a director [EREEE N/AFEA 2,714 - - - 2,714 2,714
Secured bank borrowings BERBIER
- fixed rate —EEMNE 105 109,770 - - - 109,770 107,000
- variable rate — I EHE 3 12,395 - - - 12,395 12,304
Loan payable EHER 6 246 16,738 - - 16,984 16,656
Financial quarantee contracts BBERED N/AFER 443,460 - - - 443,460 -
605,587 16,738 - - 622,325 175,676
Weighted ~ On demand or Total Carrying
average interest less than 3 months to 1 year to undiscounted  amount at 31
rate 3 months 1 year 2 years 2105 years cash flows  December 2016
RIE-1E
REXS AURRE T-A=1-H
T 7% SR=EA ZHEAZE-% —EE@E MEERE MERE LEAE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETFL ARETFL ARETFL ARETFL ARETFL
Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 B & &
Trade and other payables B RAEMENTE NA T B 39,486 - - - 39,486 39,486
Consideration payable JTEHWE NA T 16,942 - - - 16,942 16,942
Amount due to a director ENEZFER NA TiE A 3,160 - - - 3,160 3,160
Secured bank borrowings BERE *ai%”\
- fixed rate —~EEH= 9 122,663 - - - 122,663 120,000
- variable rate —FPHE 35 13,65 - - - 13,656 13,539
Financial quarantee contracts BBEREN NATEA 535,979 - - - 535,979 -
731,886 - - - 731,886 193,127
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity risk analysis (Continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand or less than 3 months”
time bank in the above maturity analysis. As at 31
December 2017 and 2016, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to
approximately RMB110,977,000 (2016: RMB5,480,000)
respectively. Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such bank
borrowings will be repaid four years (2016: five years) after
the end of the reporting period in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements,
details of which are set out in the table below:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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" For the year ended 31 December 2017 #iE—F—+%+-_F=1+—HILFE

36. B IR (&)
(b) HERBEBEEERKE (£)

mEELEE (F)
REE TR (E)

BEEAREREEKRAZBITEREFA LM
IHBEAN[BERKIR=EA ] 2RHEEE
N —_E—+tFER _E—XRNF+_A=+—
H RITERZARBBEASESRNEEN B
AER#110,977,000 (— 2 —NF: AR
5,480,0007T) st RAEBE ZHEMRR1%E &
ETHERTUJETFEEZKAKERZTE
- AR EEHE ZSRTERBRRE
HHENE (- FE:AF)ARBEEZW
HEBETERBBES HFBINTX:

Carrying

Weighted Total amount at

average 1 year to undiscounted 31 December

interest rate ~ Within 1 year 2 years 2to 5 years cash flows 2017

RZE-t&

AERRE t=A=t-H

METIF = —£R -FEME MEERE hELE ZIREE

% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

% ARBTR ARBTR ARBTTR ARBTR ARETR
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiERBaR
Secured bank borrowings BREETER

- fixed rate — BRI 10.5 17,889 58,026 51,185 127,100 107,000

- variable rate — 5B 3 1,116 1,114 2,01 41 3,977

19,005 59,140 53,226 131,371 110,977

Carrying

Weighted Total amount at

average 1 year to undiscounted 31 December

interest rate Within 1 year 2 years 20 5 years cash flows 2016

RIB-1E

FEERE +ZA=t-H

METFIE —%FR —FERF MEERE nELE R

% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

N S ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Non-derivative financial liabilities FITEBBEE
Secured bank borrowings BHEMRTER

- variable rate —FPHE 35 139 1,221 3,350 5,967 5,480
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ =T —+tF+-_A=+—HIEFE

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair values

The fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash
flow analysis using prices from observable current market
transactions. The directors consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
approximate to their fair values.

(d) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

One of the Group’s financial asset is measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period. The following
table provides an analysis of financial instrument that is
measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which
the fair value is observable.

36. B IR (&)
(o) NRE

HitWBEEMMBABENARENRELR
MEBRARREABRNMS X%ZFT&DA
MBERERESNNEN BEFRL RNEAM
BHREAAEANVBEENVKAGRAESR
HERARnEMEE-

(d HBEIREZAREE

AREBZEP-—HUKEERBRERARRLTL
BFft&- Ti‘%?ﬁﬂﬁﬁ?ﬁ“lﬁz DA E TSR AT
FHARBAREAELRETEEQ AT
AFB-—BREF=R-

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
-4 -4 =R @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
As at 31 December 2017 R-E-tF+-A=t—H
Held-for-trading investments FIERDRR 2 IRE 27 - - 27
As at 31 December 2016 RZE-RE+ZA=1-H
Held-for-trading investments BEXSRBEIRE 40 - - 40

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 during
both years. The fair value of the held-for-trading
investments is from quoted bid prices in an active market.

RMEFE F-RBF_R2ELEEE-
REXSGHREZREZANEXRBRART S
PR BE AE-
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37. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

activities.

btés‘-"'to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBERRAE

W5~ For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-—ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILFE

37. REERDFELREZHEK

TERFAVNAEEREEHAELAGEZES
BREASIFESEY RETDAELRAE
ERERERIARKRASRBERNAKERE
ReRnERNIBRBEGHREREZEE

Interest

payable

(included

Loan Amount due in other
payable to adirector Borrowings payables) Total

PRI

(FFAEtt

EAER EAESHE iR ENHER) st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTE ARETT ARETIT ARBTT ARETR

At 1 January 2017 RZZE—+F—-H—H - 3,160 133,539 375 137,074
Financing cash flows RERERE 17,342 (446) (13,728) (12,207) (9,039)
Foreign exchange translation ExgE (686) - (507) 349 (844)
Interest expenses FBHX - - - 6,701 6,701
Interest expense capitalised to BACEERMEZFNERY

properties under development - - - 5,143 5,143
At 31 December 2017 RZF—LF+-A=1—H 16,656 2,714 119,304 361 139,035
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE T —+F+-_A=+—HILFE

38. COMPREATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures in the consolidated financial
statements have been reclassified to confirm with the
current year's presentation of the Group.

39. EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

On 22 January 2018 and 14 February 2018, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into the master
agreement and supplementary agreement, respectively,
with China Sugar Holdings Limited, which is the Company’s
shareholder wholly-owned by a director of the Company,
for purchase of raw cane sugar for the period from 1
March 2018 to 31 December 2020 with an annual cap
of US$11 million, details of which are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 22 January 2018 and 14
February 2018.

38. hkEE=F

RAPBBRRZETHRAFOEET B
NEAEERFREZ25)— 5

39. BEHMRRER

RZE—-N\F—AZ+ZBEZZE—NFZA
A AR 2ENBRAR D REARRQRRK
HAERBEEBRERAT (HARAEELE
BE)FUBRBEEERBZE URZ2F—N
FZA—HAE_ZE-_ZEF+-_A=+—HHH
BERERE X LR A11,000,000% 7T 7
BERNARRBRA-ZE-NF—A=-_+=H
FoE-NF-ATHHEHZAE-
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EhéGUIe of Properties

"~ At 31 December 2017 R=ZE—+E+=-HA=+—H

A. PROPERTIES IN THE PRC A. URPEZME
Stage of
Group's development & Date of
Location Usage Area Lease term interest Classification Completion
r5E REERR
3 ik [ HEH iR ik EIAH
Portion of first and second ~ Commercial Gross floor area - Medium to 90% Completed, 2016
phase of approximately long term investment
Maoming property project, 4,000 sg. m. properties
Zhangian 7th Road,
Yuehua East District,
Maoming
7 Tk A B EES BEEEE- hHERE 90% B —ERF
BERE #4,000 75 K REME
KEMFER
F-RE_BHH
Unsold portion of first and ~ Commercial and Gross floor area-  Medium to 90% Completed, 2016
second phase of Maoming  residential complex approximately long term properties
property project, Zhangian 18,000 sq. m. held for sale
7th Road,
Yuehua East District,
Maoming
7 Tk A B BELEEGAR  REEEE- hHERE 90% BRI #EH ZEF-RF
BERPERAMERR 418,000 75K ENE
F-RE_BRLERS
Third phase of Commercial and Gross floor area - Medium to 90% Construction 2018 (Estimated)
Maoming property project,  residential complex approximately long term in progress,
Zhangian 7th Road, 188,000 sg. m. properties
Yuehua East District, under
Maoming development
AT TEE BERETGFAE  BEERE-4 PHERY 90% ERIR ER —T-)\F
ERNBEBYMFER 188,000°F 75 & IES (f&&t)
F=H
B. PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG B. URBBZYHE
Approximate Lease Group's
Location Usage saleable area term interest
S 3
e i} BOTHER®R «HEH 3y
Suite 1501, 15th Floor, Tower 1, Silvercord, Office premises — Own use 242 sq.m. Medium 100%
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon.
NERPBEREFMETL—HSBI01E BFENE-8A 242¥ 75K P 100%
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